

Digital Sound Projector

YSP-1600

Owner's Manual

Read the supplied booklet "Quick Reference Guide" before using the unit.

English

CONTENTS

Supplied accessories	4
Preparing remote control	4

FEATURES

What you can do with this unit	5
Mastering useful apps	. 6
Controls and functions	7

PREPARATIONS

General setup procedure	11
1 Installation	12
Raising the antenna	
Mounting the unit on a wall	14
2 Connecting a TV	15
3 Connecting playback devices	16
4 Other connections	17
Connecting an external subwoofer	
Wired network connections	
5 Connecting the power cable	
6 Initial settings	
Displaying the menu screen on the TV	
Selecting the language for menu display	
Setting a surround sound effect for the installation position	
Operating the unit by TV's remote control (HDMI control)	

PLAYBACK

5

11

Basic operation for playback	
Enjoving sound based on your preference	
Selecting a surround sound effect	23
2-channel playback (stereo playback mode)	23
Adjusting volume for each channel	24
Viewing audio information	24
Clear playback of human voices (CLEAR VOICE)	25
Wireless playback of audio via <i>Bluetooth</i> connection	
Listening to music from a <i>Bluetooth</i> device	
Listening to audio through <i>Bluetooth</i> speakers or headphones (transmitting)	
Terminating Bluetooth connection	

NETWORKS

Connecting to a network	31
Wired network connections	
Wireless network	
Connecting the unit to a wireless network	
Connecting a mobile device to the unit directly (Wireless Direct)	40
Plaving back music stored on media servers (PCs/NAS)	42
Media sharing setup	42
Playing music files	42
Listening to Internet radio	43
Playback of Internet radio	43
Registering favorite Internet radio stations	43
Playing back music with AirPlay	45
Playback of iTunes/iPod music contents	45
Playing back music stored on mobile devices	47
Using a mobile device to play songs	

22

SETTINGS

Setup menu	48
Setting the setup menu	
Setup menu list	
Sound	
HDMI	51
Function	
Information	53
Network	54
Bluetooth	
Operating a TV via the TV Remote Repeater function of the	unit 58
Updating the unit's firmware	
Using "Network Update" in the setup menu to update firmware	
Updating firmware with connection of a USB flash drive	60
Initializing the unit's settings	61
Initializing basic unit settings	61
Initializing network settings	61

APPENDIX

48

Troubleshooting	62
General	62
Bluetooth	64
Remote control	65
Network	
When surround effect is not enough	68
How to install YRB-100	
Basic Knowledge of Surround Sound	69
What is Surround Sound?	
What is a Digital Sound Projector?	
Yamaha's Audio Technologies	69
Glossary	
Audio/video information	
Network information	
Specifications	
• Available signal information	
Index	

About this manual

- In this manual, operations that can be performed using either the front panel keys or the remote control are explained using the remote control.
- indicates supplementary explanations for better use.
- indicates precautions for use of the unit and its feature limitations.

Supplied accessories

Before connecting, make sure you have received all of the following items.

YSP-1600

The unit



Preparing remote control

Before installing batteries or using the remote control, be sure to read battery and remote control precautions in "Quick Reference Guide" (separate booklet).

Installing the batteries





Operation range



FEATURES

What you can do with this unit



Mastering useful apps

You can operate and program the unit, or play streaming services via the unit, by installing the free dedicated apps, MusicCast CONTROLLER and HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN) on a mobile device such as a smartphone. For details, search for MusicCast CONTROLLER and HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN) on the App Store or Google Play.

MusicCast CONTROLLER

This app allows you to play distributed content and streaming services via the unit.

MusicCast CONTROLLER capabilities

- Play songs stored on computers (servers)
- Select an Internet radio station
- Play music stored on mobile devices
- Distribute and receive audio between the unit and other Yamaha network A/V devices See MusicCast Setup Guide for details.

HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN)

This app allows you to configure specific settings such as sound beams.

• In this manual, iOS and Android mobile devices are collectively referred to as "mobile devices". The specific type of mobile device is noted in explanations as needed.

Controls and functions

Front panel



1 Indicators

Indicate the status of the unit (p. 8). The indicators will dim automatically if no operations are performed for 5 seconds.

• "Dimmer" can adjust the brightness of the front panel display in the setup menu (p. 52).

2 Dual built-in subwoofers

The built-in subwoofers are located in the top part of the unit.

3 Remote control sensor

Receive infrared signals from the remote control (p. 10). Receive infrared signals from the TV remote control when the TV Remote Repeater function is enabled (p. 58).

ONNECT key

Use to control the unit using the dedicated MusicCast CONTROLLER app for mobile devices. See the MusicCast Setup Guide for details.

5 INPUT key

Select an audio input source (p. 22).

6 VOLUME (+/-) keys

Adjust the volume of the unit (p. 22).

7 🕛 key

Turn on/off the unit.

CONNECT

4

INPUT

- VOLUME +

• When the unit is turned off, this unit consumes a small amount of power in order to search for HDMI signals or to receive infrared signals from the remote control.

Ċ

Indicators



STATUS indicator

The STATUS indicator shows the unit's power status.

STATUS Glows green: The unit is on

STATUS Glows red: The unit is off (with HDMI control or network standby activated)

STATUS Off: The unit is off

2 Audio input indicator

The corresponding indicator glows to show the input source to which audio is selected.

Example: when TV is selected

TV	HDMI	ANALOG	BLUETOOTH	NET

Glows	Input source to be played back				
TV	TV audio				
HDMI	Audio from a device connected to the HDMI IN jack				
ANALOG	Audio from a device connected to the ANALOG input jack				
BLUETOOTH	Audio from a Bluetooth device				
NET	Audio input via a network				

3 SURROUND indicator

Glows when surround playback is selected and turns off when stereo playback is selected.

- SURROUND Glows when the MOVIE, MUSIC, SPORTS, GAME, or TV PROGRAM key on the remote control is pressed (surround playback).
- SURROUND Turns off when the STEREO key on the remote control is pressed (stereo playback).

4 奈 indicator

Glows when connected to a wireless network; turns off when the connection is terminated (p. 32).

5 🚯 indicator

Glows blue when connected to a *Bluetooth* device; turns off when the *Bluetooth* connection is terminated (p. 26).

Other indications

In addition to indications explained **1**–**5**, other indicators on the front panel may glow or flash to indicate operation and setting status.

In this manual, illustrations of the nine in-line indicators are used for explanation.

- 🗆 : Off
- Glows
- Flashes

Example: When the STATUS indicator flashes and the TV indicator glows



Rear panel



1 Power cable

For connecting to an AC wall outlet (p. 17).

2 TV Remote Repeater

Transmit signals from the TV's remote control received by the remote control sensor on the unit's front panel to the TV (p. 58).

3 Antenna

Raise the antenna after the unit is installed (p. 13).

4 HDMI IN jack

For connecting an HDMI-compatible playback device such as a BD/DVD player, a satellite and cable TV tuner, and a game console (p. 16).

5 HDMI OUT (ARC) jack

For connecting to an HDMI-compatible TV and outputting video/audio signals (p. 15).

6 NETWORK jack

For connecting to a network with a network cable (p. 17).

7 TV (digital optical) jack

For connecting to a playback device equipped with a digital optical audio output jack (p. 15).

8 ANALOG jack

For connecting an external device with a 3.5 mm RCA stereo cable (p. 16).

9 SUBWOOFER OUT jack

For connecting an external subwoofer (p. 17).

1 UPDATE ONLY jack

Use to update this unit's firmware (p. 60).

Remote control



Input selector keys

Select an audio input source to be played back (p. 22).

TV	TV			
HDMI	Device connected via the HDMI IN jack			
ANALOG	Device connected via the ANALOG input jack			
BLUETOOTH	Bluetooth device			
NET	Audio last input via a network			

2 Surround mode key

Choose a surround playback mode from MOVIE, MUSIC, SPORTS, GAME, TV PROGRAM (p. 23).

3 CLEAR VOICE key

Turns the CLEAR VOICE function on or off (p. 25).

▲/▼/◀/▶ keys, ENTER key

Change the setting (p. 48).

5 SETUP key Displays the setup menu (p. 48).

6 SUBWOOFER (+/-) key Adjust the volume of the subwoofer (p. 22).

7 POSITION (L/C/R) keys

For optimum surround sound effect, select a preset position mode according to where the unit is installed (p. 19).

\rm 🕑 key

Turn on/off the unit (p. 22).

9 NET RADIO (1–3) keys

Register and play streaming services such as Internet radio stations via the unit (p. 43).

OH LEVEL key

Adjust the volume balance during playback (p. 24).

11 STEREO key

Switch to stereo playback mode (p. 23).

INFO key

Use the indicator on the front panel to show information for audio currently playing (p. 24).

13 RETURN key

Return to the previous menu screen.

MUTE key

Mute the sound (p. 22).

15 VOLUME (+/-) key

Adjust the volume of the unit (p. 22).

PREPARATIONS

General setup procedure

1	Installation (p. 12)	Position the unit to achieve the optimal surround sound effects. The unit can also be mounted on a wall. Raise the wireless antenna in preparation for network connection using a wireless router (access point).
2	Connecting a TV (p. 15)	Connect a TV to the unit.
3	Connecting playback devices (p. 16)	Connect video devices (such as BD/DVD players) to the unit.
4	Other connections (p. 17)	Connect an external subwoofer. Use a network cable to connect the unit to a router in preparation for wired network connection.
5	Connecting the power cable (p. 17)	After all the connections are complete, plug in the power cable.
6	Initial settings (p. 18)	Specify unit settings before use to adjust surround sound effects based on position and conditions.

This completes all the preparations. Enjoy playing movies, music and other content with the unit!

• See "NETWORKS" (p. 31) for information regarding network connection and audio playback via a network.



1 Installation

Place the unit on a flat surface. When installing this unit on a rack behind which there is limited space, for example, it may be easier to connect external devices to this unit first. See pages 15 to 17 for information regarding the connection of external devices.

Notes

- Be sure to install this unit on a large, stable stand where it does not fall subject to vibrations, such as from an earthquake, and where it is out of the reach of children.
- The unit's speakers are not magnetically shielded. Do not install hard disk drives or similar devices near the unit.
- Do not stack the unit directly on top of other playback devices, or vice versa. Heat and vibrations may result in damage or malfunction.

Recommended place for installation



1 2 3 4 5 6

Unit installation position and surround sound effects

The unit achieves surround sound by reflecting sound beams off walls.



Effective surround effect may not be achieved in the following environment.

- Sound beams are blocked by obstacles such as furniture.
- The room size is not within the following dimensions;
- Width: 3 meters to 7 meters (9.8 ft to 23 ft)
- Depth: 3 meters to 7 meters (9.8 ft to 23 ft)
- Height: 2 meters to 3.5 meters (6.6 ft to 11.5 ft)
- Listening position is too close to the unit.
- The unit is installed too close to the left or right wall.
- The unit is installed in the corner of the room.
- There is no wall for reflecting sound beam on the path of the sound beams.

• The optimum surround sound effect is achieved by setting a position according to the installation position of the unit. For details, refer to "Setting a surround sound effect for the installation position" (p. 19).

Raising the antenna

Raise the antenna on the rear panel of the unit when connecting a wireless router (access point) to use a network.



Hold the base of the antenna while raising it to its upright position.

- Do not apply excessive force on the antenna. Doing so may damage it.
- Be sure to check the direction in which the antenna moves, and angle it in the proper direction.
- Do not remove the antenna.



· For details on the wireless connection, refer to p. 32.

1 2 3 4 5 6

Mounting the unit on a wall

The unit can be mounted on a wall. If the antenna will be used (p. 13), raise it before mounting the unit on a wall.



!

- When installing the unit on a wall, all installation work must be performed by a qualified contractor or dealer. The customer must never attempt to perform this installation work. Improper or inadequate installation could cause the unit to fall, resulting in personal injury.
- To prevent the unit from falling, attach it to a wall constructed of drywall (plasterboard).
- Make sure you use commercially available screws that can support the weight of the installation (in step 2). Using clamps other than specified screws, such as short screws, nails, and two-sided tape, may cause the unit to fall.
- Fix the cables in place where they will not become loose. If your foot or hand accidentally gets caught on a loose cable, the unit may fall.
- Check that the unit is fixed securely after the installation. Yamaha will bear no responsibility for any accidents caused by improper installations.
- Do not lean on the unit or apply excessive force to the top of the unit. Doing so may cause the unit to fall.

Attach the mounting template on a wall and mark for the screw holes.



2 Remove the mounting template from the wall and install the commercially available screws at the marks on the wall.



3 Use the screws to attach the brackets (both supplied).



4 Hang the unit on the screws.





2 Connecting a TV

Connect a TV to the unit so that video input to the unit can be output to the TV. You can also enjoy playback of TV audio on the unit.

- Use a 19-pin HDMI cable with the HDMI logo printed on it. A cable with a maximum length of 5 m is recommended to prevent degradation of signal quality.
- For playback of 3D and 4K video content, use a high-speed HDMI cable.

TVs that support Audio Return Channel (ARC)

Connect the TV to the unit with an HDMI cable (not supplied).



• This unit supports HDCP version 2.2, a copy protection technology. To enjoy playback of 4K video, connect the unit to the HDMI IN jack (one compatible with HDCP 2.2) on an HDCP 2.2-compliant TV.



When connecting a TV that supports Audio Return Channel (ARC), enable the HDMI control function (p. 51).

Audio Return Channel (ARC)

ARC enables input and output of audio signals via a single HDMI cable. If the TV supports ARC, audio signals from the TV can be input to this unit via the same HDMI cable used to output video signals from this unit to the TV.

• Use an ARC-compatible HDMI cable.

TVs that do not support Audio Return Channel (ARC)

Connect the TV to the unit with an HDMI cable (not supplied) and an optical cable.



· If the TV has no optical jack

Use a 3.5 mm stereo mini plug cable to connect the unit to the TV via the ANALOG input jack on the unit and the audio output jack on the TV. TV audio can be played through this unit by switching input to ANALOG using the ANALOG key on the remote control.

1 2 3 4 5 6

3 Connecting playback devices

Connect video devices such as BD/DVD players, set-top boxes (STBs) and game consoles to the unit. Depending on the video/audio output jacks available on your video device, choose one of the following connections. We recommend using an HDMI connection if the video device has an HDMI output jack.

HDMI connection

Connect a video device to the unit with an HDMI cable (not supplied).



TV audio can be played through this unit by switching input to HDMI using the HDMI key on the remote control.

- Once the HDMI control function has been activated (p. 20), video and audio content from playback devices can be output from the TV even when this unit is off (HDMI signal pass-through).
- Use a 19-pin HDMI cable with the HDMI logo printed on it. A cable with a maximum length of 5 m is recommended to prevent degradation of signal quality.
- · For playback of 3D and 4K video content, use a high-speed HDMI cable.
- If the video device has an HDCP 2.2-compliant HDMI output jack, connect the unit to that jack.
- Audio from the video device can be input via the TV (digital optical) jack, not via the HDMI IN jack. Use an
 optical cable to connect the video device to the unit via the digital optical output jack on the video device
 and the TV jack on the unit. If the video device is connected to the unit in this way, change the "HDMI"
 setting in the setup menu from "Audio Assign" to "Optical".

Analog connection

Connect a video device to this unit via a 3.5 mm stereo mini plug cable (not supplied). Next, connect the video device's video output to the TV's video input.



TV audio can be played through this unit by switching input to ANALOG using the ANALOG key on the remote control.

1 2 3 4 5 6

4 Other connections

Connecting an external subwoofer

The unit has built-in subwoofers. However, you can connect an external subwoofer to enhance low-frequency sounds. Connect a subwoofer via the SUBWOOFER OUT jack on this unit.



5 Connecting the power cable

After all the connections are complete, plug in the power cable.



• Use an external subwoofer with a built-in amplifier.

Wired network connections

For a wired connection, connect one end of the network cable to the NETWORK jack on the rear panel of the unit and the other end to a router. For details, refer to "NETWORKS" (p. 31).



6 Initial settings

Displaying the menu screen on the TV

Visual operation of this unit is possible by displaying its menu screen on the TV.

Turn on the unit and the TV, and then use the input button on the TV's remote control to switch input so that video input from this unit is displayed.

When this unit and the TV are connected as shown below, select "HDMI 1".



2

HDMI INPUT

τν

(ARC)

Initial screen display

When the unit is turned on for the first time after purchase, the screen below will be displayed and the 奈 indicator on the front panel will flash slowly.

Share Wi-Fi Settings You can share the wireless (Wi-Fi) settings of the network with Sound Projector using a device with iOS7 or later. [ENTER]:Start [RETURN]:Cancel [<+]:OSD Language

While this screen is displayed, an iOS device (such as an iPhone) can be used to easily connect the unit to a wireless network. See the Quick Reference Guide.

If you will not use an iOS device to connect to a wireless network, press the RETURN key.

.

 You can use this function to connect to a wireless network at any time by selecting "Share Wi-Fi Settings (iOS)" from the setup menu. However, be aware that if a different wireless network, or a *Bluetooth* device, has already been configured, doing so will erase any previous settings.

• This screen will not be displayed and the 🗢 indicator will not flash if the unit is connected to a router via its NETWORK jack (wired connection).



OUT(ARC)

The menu display

HDMI

The menu is displayed on the TV screen when the SETUP key is pressed. When the TV is receiving HDMI signals, the menu is superimposed over video content. Press the SETUP key twice to cancel menu display.





1 2 3 4 5 6

Selecting the language for menu display

- Turn the unit and TV on.
- 2 Switch the TV's input to display video input from this unit (p. 18).
- **3** Press and hold the SETUP key until the "OSD Language" menu appears on the TV.



When the menu is not displayed

- · Confirm the following cases.
- The HDMI input jack of your TV and the HDMI OUT (ARC) jack of the unit are connected.
- The input of your TV is set to "HDMI 1" (example).
- 4 Use the ▲/▼ key to select the desired language and press the ENTER key.

Settings

日本語, ENGLISH (default), DEUTSCH, FRANÇAIS, ESPAÑOL, ITALIANO, NEDERLANDS, РУССКИЙ, SVENSKA, TÜRK

5 Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.

Setting a surround sound effect for the installation position

The surround sound is achieved by reflecting the sound beams off walls as shown in the illustration below. For optimum surround effect, turn on the unit and select the POSITION key according to the installation position of the unit.

Hold down the POSITION key that corresponds to the installation position of the unit for more than 3 seconds.

The indicators on the front panel flash according to the set position.

Left	崇	崇	崇					
Center				 	<u>}</u>			
Right						崇	崇	崇







1 2 3 4 5 6

Operating the unit by TV's remote control (HDMI control)

What is the HDMI control function?

HDMI Control allows you to operate external devices via HDMI. If you connect a TV that supports HDMI Control to the unit with an HDMI cable, you can control the unit (such as power and volume) with TV remote control operations. You can also control playback devices (such as HDMI Control-compatible BD/DVD players) connected to the unit with an HDMI cable.

Coordinated functions via the TV remote control

Remote	control of TV (Example
1. Turn on/off	
Both the TV and this unit turn on/off at the same time.	6
2. Switch input sources	
 The input source for this unit switches accordingly when the TV's input source is switched. The input source for this unit also switches when a BD/DVD player is selected as the input source from the TV's menu display. The input source can be switched while this unit is turned off. 	123 456 789 101112
3. Control volume	
This unit's volume can be adjusted when the TV's audio output is set to the external device.	∧ + CH VOL ∨ SETUP −

4. Switch the audio output device (TV or this unit)

First, try the operations described above with your TV's remote control. If you are able to perform these operations, you may continue operating this unit with your TV's remote control. The HDMI control function can be used with some HDMI devices by simply activating the function. If you are not able to perform these operations, configure HDMI control settings (p. 21).

With some TVs, navigating this unit's menus displayed on the TV can be controlled.

- · Even if your TV supports the HDMI control function, some functions may not be available. For details, refer to the manual supplied with your TV.
- · We suggest using devices (TV, BD/DVD player, etc.) from the same manufacturer.



Setting the HDMI control function

- Turn on the unit, TV, and playback devices.
- 2 Activate the HDMI control function on the unit, TV, and playback devices such as BD/DVD players that support this function.

For this unit, be sure that "HDMI Control" is set to "On" (default; p. 51).

For playback devices, refer to the instructions supplied with each device.

- 3 Turn off the main power of the TV and then turn off the unit and playback devices.
- 4. Turn on the unit and playback devices and then turn on the TV.
- 5 Switch the TV input to display the video from the unit.
- 6 Press the HDMI key to select HDMI input, and check that video from the playback device is properly displayed.

HDMI Glows (green)

Check that the unit is properly coordinated with the TV by turning off the TV or adjusting the TV volume with the TV remote control.

If devices are not coordinated

Be sure that all devices are correctly connected to this unit, and that settings are properly configured as described below.

- "HDMI Control" (p. 51) is set to "On" in the setup menu.
- The HDMI control function is enabled on the TV.

The example of TV settings

- From the setup menu on your TV, select "Link setting" → "HDMI control setting", then set a setting such as "HDMI control function" to "ON".
- Set audio output to any option other than TV.

If devices fail to coordinate even after the settings described above have been applied correctly:

- Turn off this unit and the TV, and then turn them back on again.
- Disconnect the power cable of the unit and external devices connected to the unit via HDMI cable. Plug them in again after about 30 seconds.
- If devices fail to coordinate after ANALOG is input, repeat steps 5 and 6 under "Setting the HDMI control function".

Changing the connection method and connected devices

When the connected devices and jacks are changed, configure the settings again with the following procedure.

- Disable the HDMI control function of the TV and BD/ DVD player, turn off all connected devices, and change the connections.
- 2 Follow steps 1 to 7 of "Setting the HDMI control function".

PLAYBACK

Basic operation for playback



- Press the \oplus key to turn on this unit.
- 2 Turn on devices (TV, BD/DVD player, game console, etc.) connected to this unit.
- 3 Select a device by pressing the input selector key corresponding to the connection of external devices.

Press the HDMI key to play audio/video content from a BD/ DVD player connected via the HDMI IN jack.

Indicator on the front panel

For playback from a *Bluetooth* device, refer to p. 26. For audio playback via a network, refer to p. 42 to 47.

Play back a device selected in step 3.

 When listening to audio or watching video from a playback device connected to the TV, select the device as the TV's input source.

Press the VOLUME (+/-) key to adjust the volume. Press the SUBWOOFER (+/-) key to adjust the volume of the subwoofer.

When the volume is adjusted, indicators on the front panel indicate volume level.

Volume display

The number of lighted indicators increases when the volume is turned up, and decreases when the volume is turned down.

Volume down (–) ←→ Volume up (+)

Subwoofer volume display

The lighted indicator moves to the right when the volume is turned up, and to the left when the volume is turned down.

- When audio is output from both TV speaker and this unit, mute the TV sound.
- When sound input to HDMI IN jack is output from the TV, the volume level does not change even if you press the VOLUME (+/-) key or the MUTE key.

To mute the audio output

To mute the sound, press the MUTE key.

- 崇 崇 崇 崇 崇 赤 -

To resume the volume, press the MUTE key again or press the VOLUME (+/-) key.

• The subwoofer volume can be adjusted separately from the whole volume.

· Lowering the subwoofer volume is recommended at night.

Select from surround playback or stereo playback mode, and configure sound setting according to your preferences (p. 23).

Press the 🕐 key to turn off this unit after use.

Enjoying sound based on your preference

Selecting a surround sound effect

Select the surround mode to enjoy realistic surround effects that closely resemble a movie theater, the middle of a music concert, or a sports field event, by Yamaha's sound field program, "CINEMA DSP." You can select a surround mode that best suits the source from MOVIE, MUSIC, SPORTS, GAME, or TV PROGRAM,

Press one of the surround mode keys (MOVIE, MUSIC, SPORTS, GAME, or TV PROGRAM).

Indicator on the front panel

SURROUND Glows

Surround mode

The features of surround modes are described below.

Select the surround mode that best suits the playback source and your personal taste.

Sound field program	Features
MOVIE	Creates a broad and expansive cinematic space. With Dolby or DTS surround effects, this program enriches your cinematic experience.
MUSIC	Creates the palpable excitement, as if you were standing at the front center of a live concert hall event.
SPORTS	Creates the realistic atmosphere of a live sports event or talk show.
GAME	Enjoy three-dimensional sound effects with computer or video games.
TV PROGRAM	Creates optimum surround sound for TV programs.

. When the source is a 2-channel stereo signal, the sound is played back as surround sound.

2-channel playback (stereo playback mode)

The front channels are the primary channel sources for output of stereo sound.

Press the STEREO key to switch to stereo playback mode.

Indicator on the front panel



INFO

Adjusting volume for each channel

Adjust the volume of playback for each channel (audio in each direction) so that sounds are evenly distributed in their respective directions.

 Refer to "Channel Level" (p. 50) when adjusting the volume of each channel with the test sound.

Hold down the CH LEVEL key for more than 3 seconds.

Press the CH LEVEL key to select adjustable channel from the followings.

The output channel changes as follows each time the CH LEVEL key is pressed.

Indicators on the front panel

Front (left)	米			•					
					Ļ				
Center	米				-	-			
					Ţ				
Front (right)	崇				-	•	-		
					1				
Surround (right)	崇		•		-	•	•	-	•
					1				
Currented (left)	244	_	_	_	_↓	_	_	_	_
Surround (left)	775		-					0	
					ł				
Subwoofer	崇				-	-			
					Ļ				
				Returi	ns to F	ront (I	eft)		

• Subwoofer volume can only be adjusted in stereo playback mode (p. 23).

3 Press the ▲/▼ key to adjust the volume.

Display while volume is adjusted

The lighted indicator moves to the right when the volume is turned up, and to the left when the volume is turned down.

Uniume down (♥) ←→ Volume up (▲)

Example of volume balance

- If you have problems hearing words: Select C (center) to increase the level.
 When the sound is not like surround sound: Select SL (surround left) and SR (surround right) to increase the level.
- The volume of the subwoofer also can be adjusted by using the SUBWOOFER (+/ -) key.
- When the position setting is changed (p. 19), the channel level setting will be overwritten.

Viewing audio information

Information regarding audio currently playing can be viewed.

Press the INFO key.

The following information regarding audio currently playing is displayed via indicators on the front panel while the INFO key is held down.

	1		2	3	4	5		
① A in	udio from put to the	n a TV e unit v	that su via the	pports HDMI (ARC is cable	s curre	ntly bei	ng

- ② Input signal: DTS
- ③ Input signal: Dolby Digital
- Dolby Pro Logic II is currently in use (2-channel audio signal is input)
- (5) CLEAR VOICE is enabled (p. 25)



Clear playback of human voices (CLEAR VOICE)

Human voices, such as lines in movies and TV shows, or news and sports commentary, are played back very clearly.

Press the CLEAR VOICE key to turn on the CLEAR VOICE function.

Indicators on the front panel

 $\Box \qquad \Box \qquad - \underbrace{\blacksquare}_{-}^{-} - \underbrace{\blacksquare}_{-}^{-} - \underbrace{\blacksquare}_{-}^{-} - \Box \qquad \Box$ Flashes three times and then turns off

Press the key again to turn off the function.

 $\Box \qquad \Box \qquad -\frac{1}{\sqrt{1}} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{1}} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{$



Wireless playback of audio via Bluetooth connection

You can receive and play audio from a *Bluetooth* device, such as a mobile device or digital music player, over a wireless connection. Yamaha's exclusive Compressed Music Enhancer technology improves sound quality characteristics for the richness and depth of original audio before it is compressed.

You can also transmit audio input to the unit to Bluetooth speakers or headphones.

See documentation supplied with your *Bluetooth* device for more information.

Receive and play audio with the unit



!

 Audio cannot be received by the unit from mobile devices and the like, and transmitted to speakers or headphones at the same time.

• "Bluetooth" in the setup menu must be set to "On" (default; p. 57) to use Bluetooth functions.



Pairing a *Bluetooth* device with the unit

Press the BLUETOOTH key on the remote control.

Bluetooth is selected as the input.

BLUETOOTH Glows

- If you are unable to select *Bluetooth* as an input source, be sure that the following settings have been applied.
- "Bluetooth" in the setup menu is set to "On" (p. 57)
- "Transmission" in the setup menu is set to "Off" (p. 57)

2 Turn on the *Bluetooth* device to be paired, and perform pairing.

The operation varies depending on the device. Refer to the instruction manual supplied with the device.

Select "YSP-1600" in the *Bluetooth* device list on the device.

If a passkey (PIN) is required, enter the number "0000".



When pairing is completed, $\{\!\!\!\ s\\!\!\!\ \}$ or a completion message appears on the *Bluetooth* device.

The **(3)** indicator on the unit's front panel flashes while the unit and *Bluetooth* device are being paired, and glows steadily when pairing is complete.

4 Play back a song on the *Bluetooth* device.



- Perform pairing with the *Bluetooth* device and unit within 10 m (33 ft) of each other.
- The unit can be paired with up to 20 *Bluetooth* devices for receiving and transmitting audio. If a new device is successfully paired with the unit after 20 other devices have already been paired, the device with the earliest connecting date will have been unpaired to make room for the new device.
- If a *Bluetooth* device has been connected before, the unit will connect to the last connected device when the BLUETOOTH key is pressed with step 1. Terminate this connection to pair a new device.
- Refer to "Bluetooth" (p. 64) in "Troubleshooting" if paring is not possible.



Playing back audio from a *Bluetooth* device on the unit

Press the BLUETOOTH key on the remote control when the unit is turned on.

Bluetooth is selected as the input.

BLUETOOTH Glows

- If you are unable to select *Bluetooth* as an input source, be sure that the following settings have been applied.
- "Bluetooth" in the setup menu is set to "On" (p. 57)
- "Transmission" in the setup menu is set to "Off" (p. 57)

Turn on the *Bluetooth* device.



- 3 Select "YSP-1600" in the *Bluetooth* device list on the device.
- 4 Play back a song on the Bluetooth device.



- Perform *Bluetooth* connection with the device and unit within 10 m (33 ft) of each other.
- Adjust the volume level of the Bluetooth device as required.
- If a *Bluetooth* device has been connected before, the unit will connect to the last connected device when the BLUETOOTH key is pressed with step 1. Terminate this connection to connect to a different *Bluetooth* device.
- Setting "Network Standby" in the setup menu to "On" allows the unit to be turned on and off with *Bluetooth* device operations.

Terminating Bluetooth connection

Bluetooth connection is terminated in the following cases.

The 🚯 indicator on the unit's front panel turns off when the connection is terminated.

- The *Bluetooth* device is turned off.
- The BLUETOOTH key is pressed for more than 3 seconds.
- The unit is turned off.

Listening to audio through Bluetooth speakers or headphones (transmitting)



Pairing a Bluetooth device with the unit

- Turn on the *Bluetooth* device.
- 2 Select the input source (other than BLUETOOTH) with the input selector keys.
- Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

- 4 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Bluetooth", and then press the ENTER key.
- 5 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Transmission", and then press the ENTER key.
- 6 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "On", and then press the ENTER key.
- 7 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Device Search", and then press the ENTER key.

8 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select a *Bluetooth* device, and then press the ENTER key.



When a connection has been established (the device has been paired with the unit), "Completed" will be displayed on the TV screen.

The **()** indicator on the unit's front panel flashes while the unit and *Bluetooth* device are being paired, and glows steadily when pairing is complete.

- A Bluetooth device that has been assigned a passkey (PIN) other than "0000" cannot be connected to the unit.
- The unit cannot connect to a *Bluetooth* device if "Bluetooth" in the setup menu is not set to "On" (p. 57).
- Perform pairing with the *Bluetooth* device and unit within 10 m (33 ft) of each other.
- The unit can be paired with up to 20 *Bluetooth* devices for receiving and transmitting audio. If a new device is successfully paired with the unit after 20 other devices have already been paired, the device with the earliest connecting date will have been unpaired to make room for the new device.
- If a *Bluetooth* device has been connected before, the unit will connect to the last connected device when the input source is selected in step 2. Terminate this connection to pair a new device.
- "Not found" is displayed on the screen with step 8 when the unit cannot recognize the name of the device.
- Refer to "Bluetooth" (p. 64) in "Troubleshooting" if paring is not possible.

Playing back audio input from the unit through *Bluetooth* speakers or headphones

- Be sure that "Transmission" in the setup menu is set to "On" (p. 57).
- Connection to a *Bluetooth* device is not possible during playback using AirPlay (p. 45).

Turn on the Bluetooth device.

2 Select the input source (other than BLUETOOTH) with the input selector keys.

If a *Bluetooth* device has been connected before, the unit will connect to the last connected device. Proceed to step 4.

To connect to a different device, proceed to step 3.

Follow steps 3 through 8 under "Pairing a Bluetooth device with the unit" to pair the device with the unit.

When a connection has been established (the device has been paired with the unit), "Completed" will be displayed on the TV screen.

The **S** indicator on the unit's front panel flashes while the unit and *Bluetooth* device are being paired, and glows steadily when pairing is complete.

4 Audio from the input source will play.

- Perform *Bluetooth* connection with the device and unit within 10 m (33 ft) of each other.
- Adjust Bluetooth device volume as needed.
- Audio will also be output from the unit.

Terminating Bluetooth connection

Bluetooth connection is terminated in the following cases. The 😵 indicator on the unit's front panel turns off when the connection is terminated.

- The connection is terminated from the *Bluetooth* device, or the *Bluetooth* device is turned off.
- "Transmission" in the setup menu is set to "Off".
- The unit is turned off.

Input

keys

selector

NETWORKS

Connecting to a network

You can choose between wired network connection and wireless network connection (p. 32) depending upon your network environment.

Network connection allows you to listen to Internet radio stations and play music files with AirPlay or your computer (media service) via this unit. You can operate the unit with a mobile device to which the MusicCast CONTROLLER app has been installed, allowing you to enjoy listening to a variety of audio sources via this unit.

!

- Some security software installed on your computer, or network device settings (such as a firewall), may block the unit's access to your computer or Internet radio stations. Should this occur, change security software and/or network device settings.
- A network connection cannot be established if the MAC address filter on your router is enabled. Check your router's settings.
- To configure your router's subnet mask manually, apply the same subnet used by this unit to all devices.
- · Use of a broadband connection is recommended when using Internet services.

- If your router supports DHCP, network settings for the unit need not be configured. Network parameters (such as the IP address) will be assigned automatically. If your router does not support DHCP, or if you prefer to configure network parameters manually, you must configure network settings yourself (p. 54).
- You can verify that network parameters (such as the IP address) have been properly assigned to the unit by selecting "Information" (p. 54) from the setup menu.
- See our website for more information on the MusicCast CONTROLLER app.

Wired network connections

To use a wired network connection, connect the unit to a router via an STP network cable (category 5 or higher straight cable; not supplied).



The unit (rear)

 If the unit is already connected to a wireless network and you would like to switch to a wired connection, change "Network" in the setup menu to "Wired".

Wireless network

Connect the unit to a wireless router (access point).



For details on connection, see "Connecting the unit to a wireless network".

The \Leftrightarrow indicator on the front panel glows when the unit is connected to a wireless network.



- You cannot use the wireless network connection simultaneously with the wired network connection (p. 31) or Wireless Direct (p. 40).
- If the unit and the wireless router (access point) are too far apart, the unit may not connect to a wireless router (access point). In such case, place them close to each other.

• If the unit will not be connected to a wireless router (access point), Wireless Direct (p. 40) can be used to play music files stored on your mobile device via the unit.

Connecting the unit to a wireless network

Select the connection method appropriate for your network environment from "Wireless (Wi-Fi)" in the setup menu.

					W								(W								
S e	21	e	с	t		a		s	e	t	u	р		m	e	t	h	0	d			
· V	VΡ	S		В	u	t	t	0	n													
• 5	s h	a				W												g		(i	0)
• 4	٩c	c	e	s	s		Ρ	0			t		s	с	a							
• N	۱a	n	u	a			s	e	t	t			g									
۰F	' I	N		c		d																
						Ε	Е	Ν	т	Е	R]		0	к							
					Г	R	Е	т	U	R	Ν			С	a	n	с	e	1			

Connection method	Operation
WPS Button	Use the WPS button on your wireless router (access point) to establish a wireless connection.
Share Wi-Fi Settings (iOS)	Apply network settings from an iOS device (such as an iPhone).
Access Point Scan	Select an access point from a list displayed after a search of available access points.
Manual Setting	Establish a wireless network connection by entering required information, such as the SSID, manually.
PIN Code	Establish a wireless connection by registering the unit's PIN with your wireless router (access point). This method can be used if the wireless router (access point) supports the WPS PIN feature.

Choosing a connection method

If you want to:	Use this connection method
Use an iOS device to easily connect to a network	Share Wi-Fi Settings (iOS) (p. 33)
Connect to a wireless router (access point) that supports the WPS (push button) feature	WPS Button (p. 34)
Connect to a wireless router (access point) that supports the WPS PIN feature	PIN Code (p. 39)
Connect to a network by search for a nearby access point	Access Point Scan (p. 35)
Connect directly to an access point that cannot be located	Manual Setting (p. 37)

Sharing the iOS device setting

You can easily setup a wireless connection by applying the connection settings on iOS devices (such as an iPhone).

Before proceeding, confirm that your iOS device is connected to a wireless router (access point).

- !
- You need iOS device with iOS 7.1 or later.
- The connection settings on iOS devices cannot be applied to the unit to establish a wireless connection if your wireless router (access point) uses WEP encryption. See "Searching for a wireless router (access point)" (p. 35) to establish a connection.
 - Press the 🕛 key to turn on this unit.
- 2 Turn on the TV and switch the TV input to display video from the unit (HDMI OUT jack; p. 18).
- Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

- 4 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.
- 5 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network Connection", and then press the ENTER key.
- 6 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Wireless (Wi-Fi)", and then press the ENTER key.



Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Share Wi-Fi Settings (iOS)", and then press the ENTER key.



8 When the following screen is displayed, press the ENTER key.

	Share	Wi-Fi	Settings
Ιf	Sharin	g is b	begun, the
f o l	lowing	setti	ings will be
ini	tializ	ed.	
• N e	twork	settir	ngs
• N E	T pres	ets	
· A 1	1 musi	c serv	vice account
in	format	ion	
•в1	uetoot	h set1	tings
	[E	NTER]:	:Start
	[RE	TURN]:	:Cancel

The settings to be deleted (initialized) will be displayed. If you do not want to delete these settings, press the RETURN key to terminate the connection.

9 When the following screen is displayed, press the ENTER key.



10 Display the Wi-Fi setup screen on the iOS device and select the unit from "SETUP A NEW AIRPLAY SPEAKER...".

Follow the on-screen instructions displayed on the iOS device.

Using the WPS push button configuration

You can easily set up a wireless connection with one push of the WPS button.

- Press the 🕛 key to turn on this unit.
- 2 Turn on the TV and switch the TV input to display video from the unit (HDMI OUT jack; p. 18).
- Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

- 4 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.
- Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network Connection", and then press the ENTER key.
- Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Wireless (Wi-Fi)", and then press the ENTER key.



7 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "WPS Button", and then press the ENTER key.



- Push the WPS button on the wireless router (access point).
- 9 Press the ENTER key.

When a connection has been established (the device has been paired with the unit), "Completed" will be displayed on the TV screen.

If "Not connected" is displayed, press the ENTER key to repeat the process beginning with step 6, or see the information below to try another connection method.

!

- The WPS button cannot be used to establish a wireless connection if your wireless router (access point) uses WEP encryption, or if the router's MAC address filter is enabled. See "Searching for a wireless router (access point)" (p. 35) to establish a connection.
- The WPS button cannot be used to establish a wireless connection if your wireless router (access point) is configured so that it does not broadcast its SSID. See "Setting up the wireless connection manually" (p. 37) to establish a connection.

About WPS

WPS (Wi-Fi Protected Setup) is a standard established by the Wi-Fi Alliance, which allows easy establishment of a wireless home network.



Searching for a wireless router (access point)

Find and connect to a nearby wireless router (access point).

- Press the \bigcirc key to turn on this unit.
- 2 Turn on the TV and switch the TV input to display video from the unit (HDMI OUT jack; p. 18).
- Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

4 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.

5 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network Connection", and then press the ENTER key.

6 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Wireless (Wi-Fi)", and then press the ENTER key.



Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Access Point Scan", and then press the ENTER key.



The list of available access points appears on the TV screen.

8 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select the desired access point and press the ENTER key.

The wireless connection setting screen appears on the TV.



- **9** Press the ENTER key.
- 10 Use the </▶/▲/▼ and ENTER keys to enter the security key.

Γ	* 1	* * *	* * _	_										
	()	E]	{	}						#	%	&
									\$					
	0	1	2		4		6		8	9	@			
	А	в	С	D	Е				I		к		М	
	Ν		Ρ	Q	R					W	х		Z	_
		b		d		f	g	h		j	k	1	m	+
	n	0	<u> </u>	<u>a</u>	r	s	t_)	► U	V	w	x	v]	
	sμ	o a d	c e		Βŀ	(SI	2	DI	ΞLΙ	ЕΤΙ		CΙ	LΕΛ	A R
	01													
1	C A	A N C	ΞEΙ											
-0														

[←]/[→]: Move the cursor left and right. [Space]: Enter a space. [BKSP]: Delete the character to the left of the selected one. [DELETE]: Delete the selected character. [CLEAR]: Delete all characters entered. [CANCEL]: Cancel character entry, and return to the previous screen.

Once the security key been entered, select "OK", and then press the ENTER key. The screen will return to that displayed in step 8.



11 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Connect" and press the ENTER key to start the connection process.

When a connection has been established (the device has been paired with the unit), "Completed" will be displayed on the TV screen.

If "Not connected" is displayed press the ENTER key to repeat the process beginning with step 6, or see the information below to try another connection method.

!

 "Access Point Scan" cannot be used to establish a wireless connection if your wireless router (access point) is configured so that it does not broadcast its SSID. See "Setting up the wireless connection manually" (p. 37) to establish a connection.

12 Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.


Setting up the wireless connection manually

Setup the SSID (network name), encryption method and security key for your network manually.

- Press the \oplus key to turn on this unit.
- 2 Turn on the TV and switch the TV input to display video from the unit (HDMI OUT jack; p. 18).
- 3 Press the SETUP key twice. The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.
- 4 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.
- 5 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network Connection", and then press the ENTER key.
- Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Wireless (Wi-Fi)", and then press the ENTER key.



✓ Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Manual Setting", and then press the ENTER key.



8 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "SSID".



Use the ◄/►/▲/▼ keys and the ENTER key to enter the SSID of the access point.

_														
	al	c.	_											
	()	Ε]	{	}						#	%	&
									\$					
	0	1	2		4		6		8	9	@			
	А	в	С	D	Е				I		к		М	
	Ν		Ρ	Q	R					W	х		Z	_
		b		d		f	g	h		j	k		m	+
	n		_n_		r	s	t_)	11	v	w	x	v]	_ →
I	SI	o a i	се		Bł	< S I	>	DI	ELI	ЕΤΙ	2	CI	LE,	A R
I	01	<												
1	C,	AN (CΕΙ											
4														

[←]/[→]: Move the cursor left and right. [Space]: Enter a space. [BKSP]: Delete the character to the left of the selected one. [DELETE]: Delete the selected character. [CLEAR]: Delete all characters entered. [CANCEL]: Cancel character entry, and return to the previous screen.

Once the security key been entered, select "OK", and then press the ENTER key. The screen will return to that displayed in step 8.

10 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Security" and the ◀/► keys to select the encryption method.

Settings

None, WEP, WPA2-PSK (AES), Mixed Mode



 As communications are not encrypted when "None" is selected, selecting this option poses the risk that third parties may access the unit without your permission.



11 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Security Key" and press the ENTER key.

• If you select "None" in step 10, this item is not available.

12 Use the **◄/►/▲/▼** and ENTER keys to enter the security key.

If you select "WEP" in step 10, enter either 5 or 13 character string, or 10 or 26 hexadecimal (base 16) keys.

If you select the method other than "WEP", enter either 8 to 63 character string, or 64 hexadecimal (base 16) keys.

 Hexadecimal (base 16) keys use combinations of the numbers 0 through 9 and the letters a through f. Letters are not case sensitive.

_														
	* *	* * *	* * _	_										
	()	E]	{	}						#	%	&
									\$					
	0	1	2	3	4		6		8	9	@			
	А	в	С	D	Е				I		к		М	
	Ν		Р	Q	R					W	х		Z	_
	а	b		d		f	g	h		j	k	ı	m	
	_ <u>n_</u>	0	n	_a_	r	s	_ <u>t</u>)	> U	v	w	_x_	V	_zJ	
	Sβ	o a d	e e		Bł	< S I	>	DI	ELI	ЕΤΙ		CΙ	ΕJ	A R
	٥k													
Т	C A	A N C	ΞEΙ											
													_	_

[←]/[→]: Move the cursor left and right. [Space]: Enter a space. [BKSP]: Delete the character to the left of the selected one. [DELETE]: Delete the selected character. [CLEAR]: Delete all characters entered. [CLEAR]: Cancel character entry, and return to the previous screen.

Once the security key been entered, select "OK", and then press the ENTER key. The screen will return to that displayed in step 8.

13 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Connect" and press the ENTER key to start the connection process.

When a connection has been established (the device has been paired with the unit), "Completed" will be displayed on the TV screen.

If "Not connected" is displayed press the ENTER key to repeat the process beginning with step 6.

14 Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.

Using the WPS PIN code

Register the unit's PIN code with your wireless router (access point) to establish a connection.

- Press the 🕛 key to turn on this unit.
- 2 Turn on the TV and switch the TV input to display video from the unit (HDMI OUT jack; p. 18).
- **3** Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

- 4 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.
- 5 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network Connection", and then press the ENTER key.
- 6 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Wireless (Wi-Fi)", and then press the ENTER key.



Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "PIN Code", and then press the ENTER key.



The list of available access points appears on the TV screen.

8 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select the desired access point and press the ENTER key.

The PIN code of the unit appears on the TV screen.



9 Enter the unit's PIN code into the wireless router (access point).

For details on settings, refer to the instruction manual of the wireless router (access point).

10 Press the ENTER key to start the connection process.

When a connection has been established (the device has been paired with the unit), "Completed" will be displayed on the TV screen.

If "Not connected" is displayed press the ENTER key to repeat the process beginning with step 6, or see the information below to try another connection method.

!

 The PIN code cannot be used to establish a wireless connection if your wireless router (access point) uses WEP encryption, or if the router's MAC address filter is enabled. See "Searching for a wireless router (access point)" (p. 35) to establish a connection.

Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.



Connecting a mobile device to the unit directly (Wireless Direct)

Connect a mobile device directly to the unit without using a wireless router (access point).

Wireless Direct supports the following.

- Operation of the unit using a mobile device to which the dedicated HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN) app has been installed.
- Use of AirPlay to play music files stored on an iOS device.





ENTER

<//▶

▲ / ▼ ENTER

SETUP

- You cannot use Wireless Direct simultaneously with the wired network connection (p. 31) or the wireless network connection (p. 32).
- Therefore, you cannot use any kind of Internet service such as Internet radio.
- video from the unit (HDMI OUT jack; p. 18).

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

- **4** Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.
- Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Network Connection", and then press the ENTER key.
- Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Wireless Direct", and then press the ENTER key.



Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Security" and the $\checkmark/\triangleright$ keys to select the encryption method.

Settings None, WPA2-PSK (AES)

In most cases, "WPA2-PSK (AES)" should be selected. If your mobile device does not support "WPA2-PSK (AES)", select "None".

 As communications are not encrypted when "None" is selected, selecting this option poses the risk that third parties may access the unit without your permission.

Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Security Key" and press the ENTER key.

• If you select "None" in step 7, this item is not available.



- · When Wireless Direct is enabled, the unit cannot connect to the Internet.
- Press the \bigcirc key to turn on this unit.
- Turn on the TV and switch the TV input to display
- 2 Press the SETUP key twice.

9 Use the </▶/▲/▼ and ENTER keys to enter the security key.</p>

Enter either 8 to 63 character string, or 64 hexadecimal (base 16) keys.

 Hexadecimal (base 16) keys use combinations of the numbers 0 through 9 and the letters a through f. Letters are not case sensitive.

* *	* * *	* * _	_										
()	Ε		{	}						#	%	8
								\$					
0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	@			=
Α	в	с	D	Е				I	J	к		М	
N	0	Р	Q	R	s	т			W	х		Z	_
a	b		d		f	g	h	i	j	k	ı	m	
<u> </u>	0	n	_a_	r	s	1	> U	v	w	_x_	V]	
Sţ	o a (c e		Bł	< S	P	DI	ELI	ΞТВ		Cι	- E /	A F
01													
C /	A N (CΕΙ											

[←]/[→]: Moves the cursor left and right. [Space]: Enter a space. [BKSP]: Delete the character to the left of the selected one. [DELETE]: Delete the selected character. [CLEAR]: Delete all characters entered. [CANCEL]: Cancel character entry, and return to the previous screen.

Once the security key been entered, select "OK", and then press the ENTER key. The screen below will be displayed.



- Before proceeding to the next step, record the following information. These
 information will be needed to configure the Wi-Fi setting of a mobile device.
- SSID displayed on the TV screen
- Security key you have just entered

10 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Save" and press the ENTER key to save the setting.

This completes the settings and "Set the mobile device." will be displayed on the TV screen. The unit functions as an access point.

Next, configure the Wi-Fi settings of a mobile device.

11 Configure the Wi-Fi settings of a mobile device.

For details on settings of your mobile device, refer to the instruction manual of the mobile device.

- 1 Enable the Wi-Fi function on the mobile device.
- ② Select the SSID displayed in step 9 from the list of available access points.
- (3) When you are prompted for a password, enter the security key displayed in step 9.

12 Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.



Playing back music stored on media servers (PCs/NAS)

You can play back music files stored on your PC or DLNA-compatible NAS on the unit.

]

- To use this function, the unit and your PC must be connected to the same router (p. 31). You can check
 whether the network parameters (such as the IP address) are properly assigned to the unit in "Information"
 (p. 54) in the setup menu.
- The audio may be interrupted while using the wireless network connection. In this case, use the wired network connection.

- The following file formats are supported.
- The unit supports playback of WAV (PCM format only), MP3, WMA, MPEG-4 AAC, FLAC and ALAC (Apple Lossless Audio Codec) files (1- or 2-channel audio only).
- The unit is compatible with sampling rates of up to 192 kHz for WAV and FLAC files, 96 kHz for ALAC files, and 48 kHz for other files.
- The unit supports gapless playback of WAV, FLAC and ALAC files
- To play back FLAC files, you need to install server software that supports sharing of FLAC files via DLNA on your PC or use a NAS that supports FLAC files.
- Digital Rights Management (DRM) contents cannot be played back.

Media sharing setup

To play back music files stored on your PC or DLNA-compatible NAS, first you need to configure the media sharing setting on each music server.

For a PC with Windows Media Player installed

This unit supports Windows Media Player 11 or later. This section explains Windows Media Player 12 setup as an example.

- Start Windows Media Player 12 on your PC.
- 2 Select "Stream", then "Turn on media streaming".
- **3** Click "Turn on media streaming".
- 4 Select "Allowed" from the drop-down list next to the unit's model name.
- 5 Click "OK" to exit.

For a PC or a NAS with other DLNA server software installed

Refer to the instruction manual for the device or software and configure the media sharing settings.

Playing music files

Use the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device to play music files.

- Configure basic settings for the MusicCast CONTROLLER app before playing music files.
- · Refer to the supplied "MusicCast Setup Guide" for details.

Listening to Internet radio

You can listen to Internet radio stations from all over the world.

!

- To use this function, the unit must be connected to the Internet (p. 31). You can check whether the network parameters (such as the IP address) are properly assigned to the unit in "Information" (p. 54) in the setup menu.
- · You may not be able to receive some Internet radio stations.
- · The unit uses the vTuner Internet radio station database service.
- · This service may be discontinued without notice.

Playback of Internet radio

Use the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device to select an Internet radio station.

- Configure basic settings for the MusicCast CONTROLLER app before selecting an Internet radio station.
- · Refer to the supplied "MusicCast Setup Guide" for details.

Registering favorite Internet radio stations

Assign Internet radio stations to the NET RADIO keys on the remote control, or save them in the vTuner Bookmarks folder.

Assigning a station to a NET RADIO key

- Select the desired Internet radio station.
- Press and hold one of the NET RADIO keys (1–3) for at least 3 seconds.

Tuning into assigned Internet radio stations

Press the NET RADIO key (1–3) to which the desired Internet radio station has been assigned.

The input source switches to NET, and streaming begins.





Registering the station on the vTuner website

You can also register your favorite Internet radio stations on the vTuner website.

Select any of Internet radio stations on the unit.

This operation is necessary to register the radio station for the first time.

2 Check the vTuner ID of the unit.

You can find the vTuner ID in "Information" (p. 54) in the setup menu.

3 Access the vTuner website (http://yradio.vtuner.com/) with the web browser on your PC and enter the vTuner ID.

You can switch the language.



Enter the vTuner ID in this area.

 To use this feature, you need to create your personal account. Create your account using your e-mail address.

4 Register your favorite radio stations.

Click the "Add" icon $(\bullet+)$ next to the station name.

• To remove the station from the "Bookmarks" folder, select "Bookmarks" in the Home screen, and then click the "Remove" icon (♥–) next to the station name.

Playing back music with AirPlay

The AirPlay function allows you to play back iTunes or iPod music on the unit via network.

Č.

 This section describes "iPod touch", "iPhone" and "iPad" as the "iPod". "iPod" refers to "iPod touch", "iPhone" and "iPad", unless otherwise specified.



1

- To use this function, the unit and your PC or iPod must be connected to the same router (p. 31). You can
 check whether the network parameters (such as the IP address) are properly assigned to the unit in
 "Information" (p. 54) in the setup menu.
- When using a multiple SSID router, access to the unit might be restricted depending on the SSID to connect. Connect the unit and iPod to the same SSID.
- The AirPlay function can be used with an iPhone, iPad, or iPod touch running iOS 4.3.3 or later, a Mac running OS X version 10.8 "Mountain Lion" or later, or a Mac or Windows computer with iTunes 10.2.2 or later installed.

Playback of iTunes/iPod music contents

Follow the procedure below to play back iTunes/iPod music contents on the unit.

Turn on the unit, and start iTunes on the PC or display the playback screen on the iPod.

If the iTunes/iPod recognizes the unit, the AirPlay icon () appears.

iTunes (example)

iPod iOS7/iOS8 (example)

iPod iOS6 (example)



.

• If the icon does not appear, check whether the unit and PC/iPod are connected to the router properly.

On the iTunes/iPod, click (tap) the AirPlay icon and select the unit (network name of the unit) as the audio output device.



Network name of the unit

3 Select a song and start playback.

To operate playback, use the Music app on the iPod or iTunes on the PC. The input source switches to NET, and playback begins.

> NET Glows

- You can turn on the unit automatically when starting playback on iTunes or iPod by setting "Network Standby" (p. 56) in the setup menu to "On".
- You can edit the network name (the unit's name on the network) displayed on iTunes/iPod in "Network Name" (p. 56) in the setup menu.
- You can adjust the unit's volume from the iTunes/iPod during playback.

Caution

When you use iTunes/iPod controls to adjust volume, the volume may be unexpectedly loud. This could
result in damage to the unit or speakers. If the volume suddenly increases during playback, stop
playback on the iTunes/iPod immediately.

Playing back music stored on mobile devices

Use this function to play music stored on your mobile device over a network.



- To use this function, the unit and your PC or mobile device must be connected to the same router (p. 31). You can check whether the network parameters (such as the IP address) are properly assigned to the unit in "Information" (p. 54) in the setup menu.
- When using a multiple SSID router, access to the unit might be restricted depending on the SSID to connect. Connect the unit and mobile device to the same SSID.

Using a mobile device to play songs

Use the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device to operate playback.

- Configure basic settings for the MusicCast CONTROLLER app before playing music.
- · Refer to the supplied "MusicCast Setup Guide" for details.

Caution

When you use mobile device controls to adjust volume, the volume may be unexpectedly loud. This
could result in damage to the unit or speakers. If the volume suddenly increases during playback, stop
playback on the mobile device immediately.

SETTINGS

Setup menu

A variety of settings for this unit can be specified and adjusted from the setup menu. Among the options available are channel volume control, HDMI settings, and network settings.

The setup menu is displayed on, and operated from, the TV screen. See "Displaying the menu screen on the TV" (p. 18) for instructions on displaying the setup menu on the TV.

Setting the setup menu

Press the SETUP key.

To display the Network or Bluetooth menu, press the SETUP key again.

Setup menu

Setup Menu ▲ ►	A 4Þ
Sound	Channel Level
HDMI	Dynamic Range
Function	Audio Delay
Information	V
\checkmark	

- Hold down the SETUP key for more than 3 seconds to display "OSD Language" directly on the screen (p. 19, 52).
- If an update for the unit's firmware is available, an envelope icon (
) will be displayed in the setup menu (p. 59).

2 Use the ▲/▼ key to select a menu and then press the ENTER key.

Repeat these steps to display the desired menu.



The ► key can be used in place of the ENTER key.

Press the ◀ key or RETURN key to return to the previous menu.

- 3 Use the ▲/▼ key to change the setting value of each menu.
- **4** Press the SETUP key again to exit the setup menu.



Setup menu list

Menu		Item	Function	Page
	Channel Level	Front L, Front R, Center, Surround L, Surround R, Subwoofer	Adjust the volume of each channel.	50
Sound	Dynamic Range		Specify dynamic range.	50
	Audio Delay		Adjust the delay between video and audio output.	50
	HDMI Control		Turn HDMI control on or off.	51
HDMI	HDMI Audio Out		Choose whether HDMI audio input is played via this unit or the TV.	51
	Audio Assign		Specify the audio input from the TV jack or HDMI IN jack when HDMI is selected as the input source.	51
	Dimmer		Adjust the brightness of indicators on the front panel.	52
Function	OSD Language		Change the language used for menus displayed on the TV screen.	52
Function	Auto Power Standby		Turn Auto Power Standby on or off.	52
	TV Remote Repeater		Enable/disable the TV Remote Repeater function.	58
	Audio		Display audio input signal information.	53
Information	Video		Display video input signal information.	53
	System		Display this unit's firmware version.	53
	Information		Display the unit's network information.	54
	Network Connection		Select the network connection method.	54
	IP Address	DHCP, IP Address, Subnet Mask, Default Gateway, DNS Server (P), DNS Server (S)	Configure the network parameters (such as IP address).	55
Network	MAC Address Filter	Filter, MAC Address 1–10	Set the MAC address filter to limit access to the unit from other network devices.	55
	Network Standby		Enable/disable the function that turns on the unit from other network devices.	56
	Network Name		Edit the network name (the unit's name on the network) displayed on other network devices.	56
	Network Update	Perform Update	Update the firmware via the network.	56
	Bluetooth		Enable/disable the Bluetooth functions.	57
Blustooth	Transmission		Turn the function that transmits audio to a <i>Bluetooth</i> device, such as <i>Bluetooth</i> speakers, on or off.	57
Diaetootii	Device Search		Search for the <i>Bluetooth</i> device, such as <i>Bluetooth</i> speakers, to which audio will be transmitted.	57
	MAC Address		Display the MAC address for the Bluetooth connection.	57

Sound



Setup Menu	→	Sound	→	Audio Delay

TV images sometimes lag behind the sound. You can use this function to delay the sound output to synchronize it with the video image.

0 ms-500 ms	Specify audio output timing in increments of 5 ms.
Auto (default)	Adjust the delay between video and audio output automatically when a TV that supports an automatic lipsync function is connected to the unit via HDMI.

HDMI

Use to configure the settings related to HDMI signals and the HDMI control function.

HDMI Control



Off (default)	Disable the HDMI control function. The standby power consumption of this unit decreases.
On	Enable the HDMI control function.

HDMI Audio Out

This setting can be configured only when "HDMI Control" is set to "Off".



Use to select a device to play back HDMI audio signals.

Settings

AMP (default)	Play back the input sound signal.
TV	Plays audio content from the TV connected to the HDMI OUT (ARC) jack. Volume cannot be adjusted from the unit. Use the TV to adjust volume.

- When "HDMI Control" is set to "On", select the audio output device based on the settings configured for the TV connected to this unit.
- HDMI video signals input to the HDMI IN jack of this unit are always output from the HDMI OUT (ARC) jack of this unit.

Audio Assign



Specify whether audio is input via the HDMI IN jack or the TV (digital optical) jack of the unit when HDMI is selected as the input source.

Settings

HDMI (default), Optical

Function

Dimmer Setup Menu Function Dimmer Adjust the brightness of indicators on the front panel. Settings -2 (off), -1 (normal; default), 0 (bright) If this function is set to "-2" or "-1", the display brightens only when operations are performed with this unit. **OSD** Language Setup Menu Function **OSD Language** Use to select the language used for menus displayed on the TV screen. Settings 日本語 Menus are displayed in Japanese ENGLISH Menus are displayed in English. (default) F

DEUTSCH	Menus are displayed in German.
FRANÇAIS	Menus are displayed in French.
ESPAÑOL	Menus are displayed in Spanish.
ITALIANO	Menus are displayed in Italian.
NEDERLANDS	Menus are displayed in Dutch.
РУССКИЙ	Menus are displayed in Russian.
SVENSKA	Menus are displayed in Swedish.
TÜRK	Menus are displayed in Turkish.

• Hold down the SETUP key for more than 3 seconds to display "OSD Language" directly on the TV screen.

• The settings may be changed automatically when using the TV which supports the HDMI control function.

Auto Power Standby



Turn Auto Power Standby on or off.

When this function is activated, the unit turns off when it is not in use.

Settings

Off (default setting other than U.K., Europe and Russia models), On (default setting for U.K., Europe and Russia models)

When "Auto Power Standby" is set to "On", the unit automatically turns off as indicated below

- Audio is input to the unit, but no operations have been performed with the unit for more than 8 hours.
- HDMI, BLUETOOTH or NET is selected as the input source, but no audio has been input to the unit or no operations have been performed with the unit for more than 20 minutes.
- HDMI is selected as the input source, but no playback device has been connected to the unit's HDMI IN jack for more than 20 minutes.

5 minutes before the auto power standby function automatically turns the unit off, the indicators on the front panel indicate a countdown until the unit is turned off.

5 minutes before



One indicator turns off for every minute that passes.

10 seconds before

The blinking indicator moves to the left for every second that passes. ... \leftarrow 9 seconds before \leftarrow 10 seconds before

• Auto Power Standby can also be turned on or off using the keys on the front panel (p. 62).

TV Remote Repeater

Setup Menu	→	Function	→	TV Remote Repeater

Turn the TV Remote Repeater function on or off.

Settings

Off (default)	Disable the TV Remote Repeater function.
On	Enable the TV Remote Repeater function.

For details, see "Operating a TV via the TV Remote Repeater function of the unit" (p. 58).

Information

Display information for the audio and video signal input to this unit.

Audio



The following information on the current audio input signal is displayed.

Format	Digital audio format	
Number of channels	The number of channels contained within the input signal—front/ surround/low frequency effects (LFE). Example: "3/2/0.1" means signal contains 3 front channels, 2 surround channels, and LFE. If the signal contains channels other than front, surround, and LFE, the total number of channels may be displayed. Example: "5.1ch".	
Sampling frequency	The sampling frequency of the digital input signal	
Bit rate	The per-second bit rate of the input signal	

• The audio bit rate or sampling frequency may not be displayed for some input signals.

Video



The following information on the current video input signal is displayed.

Туре	HDMI or DVI
Resolution	Video signal resolution

System



Display the version of firmware currently installed on this unit.

Network

Configures the network settings.

• Some menus are not superimposed over video content on the TV screen.

Information

Setup Menu

Network

Information

Display the network information on the unit.

 The options displayed vary according to the type of network connection (Wired/Wireless (Wi-Fi)/Wireless Direct).

Status	The connection status of the NETWORK jack
Connection	Connection method
MC Network	The connection status of MusicCast Network
SSID	The access point to which the unit is connected
Security	The encryption method for your network
MAC Address	MAC address (Ethernet/Wi-Fi)
IP Address	IP address
Subnet Mask	Subnet mask
Default Gateway	The IP address of the default gateway
DNS Server (P)	The IP address of the primary DNS server
DNS Server (S)	The IP address of the secondary DNS server
vTuner ID	The ID of the Internet radio (vTuner)
-	

Network Connection

Setup Menu	→	Network	→	Network Connection
Select the network cor	nection	method.		
Settings				
Wired	Select this cable (no	s option when connecting the t supplied).	e unit to	a network with a network
Wireless (Wi-Fi)	Select this router (ac	s option when connecting the cess point).	e unit to	a network via the wireless
Wireless Direct	Select this option when connecting a mobile device to the unit directly.			

IP Address

Setup Menu	→	Network	→	IP Address
------------	----------	---------	----------	------------

Configure the network parameters (such as IP address).

DHCP

Select whether to use a DHCP server.

Settings

Off	The DHCP server is not used. Configure the network parameters manually. For details, see "Manual network settings".
On (default)	The DHCP server is used to automatically obtain the unit's network parameters (such as IP address).

Manual network settings

Set "DHCP" to "Off".

2 Use the $\blacktriangle/\blacksquare$ keys to select a parameter type.

IP Address	Specify an IP address.
Subnet Mask	Specify a subnet mask.
Default Gateway	Specify the IP address of the default gateway.
DNS Server (P)	Specify the IP address of the primary DNS server.
DNS Server (S)	Specify the IP address of the secondary DNS server.

- 3 Use the **◄/**▶ keys to move the edit position and the **▲/**▼ keys to select a value.
- **4** Press the ENTER key.

MAC Address Filter

Setup Menu

Network

MAC Address Filter

The MAC address filter limits network devices that can be used to operate the unit. When operating the unit via an app on a mobile device, specify the MAC address of the device.

• Operation of the AirPlay function (p. 45) or DLNA-compatible device (p. 42) is not limited by this setting.

Filter

Enable/disable the MAC address filter.

Settings

Off (default)	Disable the MAC address filter.
On	Enable the MAC address filter. In "MAC Address 1–10", specify the MAC addresses of the network devices that will operate the unit.

MAC Address 1–10

Specify the MAC addresses (up to 10) of the network devices that will operate the unit when "Filter" is set to "On".

- Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select an MAC address number (1 to 10).
- 2 Use the **◄/**► keys to move the edit position and the **▲/**▼ keys to select a value.
- **3** Press the ENTER key.

Network Standby



Turn the function that controls the unit's power (Network Standby) when a network device or *Bluetooth* device is operated on or off.

Settings

Off	Disable the network standby function.		
		The unit will turn on when the MusicCast CONTROLLER or HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN) app installed on your mobile device is used to initiate playback while the unit is off.	
		The unit will turn on and off in accordance with the following <i>Bluetooth</i> device operations.	
On (defeuilt)	Enable the network	Coordinated power on	
On (default)	standby function.	When a <i>Bluetooth</i> device is connected to this unit while it is off, this unit turns on and the input source switches to BLUETOOTH.	
		Coordinated power off	
		When a <i>Bluetooth</i> device is disconnected from this unit while it is on, this unit turns off.	
		(Only when BLUETOOTH is selected as the input source.)	

• The unit consumes more power when "Network Standby" is set to "On" than when it is set to "Off".

Network Name



Edit the name displayed for this device (the unit's name on the network) on other network devices. A name up to 15 characters in length may be specified.

Use the **◄/**► keys to move the edit position and the **▲**/▼ keys to select a character.

Network Name ▲
◀YSP-1600 1B08FA ▶
\checkmark
[RETURN]:Back

The following alphanumeric characters and symbols may be used.
 () [] { } <> * ! ? # % & . . : ; _ | / \\$ ~ ^ ' " ` 0-9 @ + - = A-Z a-z

2 Press the RETURN key.

Network Update



Update the firmware via the network.

Perform Update

This option is available after firmware has been updated. For details, see "Updating the unit's firmware" (p. 59).

Bluetooth

Configures the Bluetooth settings.

• Some menus are not superimposed over video content on the TV screen.

Setup Menu	→ Bluetooth	→ Bluetooth
Enables/disable Settings	is the <i>Bluetooth</i> function.	
Off	Disable the Bluetooth function.	
	Enable the <i>Plusteath</i> function	

Transmit audio from the unit to *Bluetooth* speakers or headphones.

Settings

Off (default)	Audio can not be transmitted.
On	Audio input to the unit can be transmitted to <i>Bluetooth</i> speakers or headphones.

Device Search				
Setup Menu	→	Bluetooth	→	Device Search
Select the <i>Bluetooth</i> spe the pair the speakers or	akers headp	or headphones to which phones with the unit to est	audio ablish	will be transmitted, and a connection.
MAC Address				
Setup Menu	→	Bluetooth	→	MAC Address

Display the MAC address for the *Bluetooth* connection.

Operating a TV via the TV Remote Repeater function of the unit

When the TV Remote Repeater function is enabled, the unit receives TV remote control signals at the remote control sensor (on front) and transmits the signals from the TV Remote Repeater (on rear). This function is useful when you cannot operate your TV from the remote control because the remote control sensor of the TV is blocked by the unit.

!

 $\mathbf{A} / \mathbf{\nabla}$

ENTER

SETUP

- This function can be used while the TV remote control is using infrared signals.
- Position the unit and TV so that they are separated by at least 5 cm (2").



Follow the steps below to enable the TV Remote Repeater function.

Press the SETUP key.

The setup menu is displayed.

- 2 Use ▲/▼ key to select "Function", and then press the ENTER key.
- 3 Use ▲/▼ key to select "TV Remote Repeater", and then press the ENTER key.
- 4 Use ▲/▼ key to select "On", and then press the ENTER key.
- **5** Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.



Updating the unit's firmware

New firmware that provides additional features or product improvements will be released as needed. If the unit is connected to the Internet, you can download the firmware via the network and update it.

When the unit is turned on for the first time after a new version of the unit's firmware has been released, a message indicating that a firmware update is available will be displayed on the TV screen, and an envelope icon (**(**) will be displayed in the setup menu (p. 48)

The unit's firmware can be updated as follows.

- Update firmware from "Network Update" in the setup menu.
- Update firmware by connecting a USB flash drive to which the unit's firmware update has been saved (p. 60).
- Update firmware using the dedicated MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on a mobile device. Follow MusicCast CONTROLLER guides to operate the app and update the firmware.

Notes

- Do not operate the unit or disconnect the power cable or network cable during firmware update. Firmware update takes about 20 minutes or more (depending on your Internet connection speed).
- If the Internet connection speed is slow, or the unit is connected to the wireless network, network update may not be possible depending on the condition of the network connection. In this case, update the firmware using the USB flash drive (p. 60).
- To perform the following procedure, your TV must be connected to the unit via HDMI.
- · For details on update, visit the Yamaha website.

Using "Network Update" in the setup menu to update firmware

Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

2 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.

3 Use the ▲/▼ keys to select "Network Update", and then press the ENTER key.

The following screen is displayed when firmware updates are available.



To cancel the operation without updating the firmware, press the SETUP key.

4 Press the ENTER key.

The TV screen goes black and firmware update begins.

The indicators on the front panel glow to indicate progress during the update.



 If there are multiple firmware updates, the indicators will start glowing as each firmware update begins.



5 When the indicators on the front panel glow alternately as shown below, press the () (power) key on the unit's front panel.



The firmware update is complete.

 If the firmware update fails, the indicator at far right will flash blue. Use the ⁽¹⁾ (power) key to turn the unit off and then on again, and repeat the procedure from step 1 again. If the firmware update fails again, confirm that the unit is properly connected to a network.

Updating firmware with connection of a USB flash drive

Download the latest firmware version from the Yamaha website to a USB flash drive, which can then be used to update the unit's firmware.

See information provided when updating firmware for details.

- Save this unit's firmware to a USB flash drive.
- 2 Turn off the unit.
- 3 Connect the USB flash drive to the UPDATE ONLY jack on the unit's rear panel.

Press the ⁽⁾ key on the front panel while pressing the VOLUME – key on the unit.

The firmware update will begin.

The indicators on the front panel glow to indicate progress during the update.



• If there are multiple firmware updates, the indicators will start glowing as each firmware update begins.

5 When the indicators on the front panel glow alternately as shown below, press the ⁽¹⁾ (power) key on the unit's front panel.



The firmware update is complete.

SU/

- If the firmware update fails, the indicator at far right will flash blue. Use the () (power) key to turn the unit off and then on again, and repeat the procedure from step 1 again. If the firmware update fails again, confirm the following.
- The USB flash drive is correctly connected to the UPDATE ONLY jack.
- See information provided as firmware updates are performed, and be sure that the USB flash drive contains the firmware update for this unit.
- The unit is properly connected to a network.

Initializing the unit's settings

Various settings for the unit can be initialized. You can choose to initialize basic unit settings (does not initialize network settings), or to initialize only network settings.

Initializing basic unit settings

The basic unit settings other than network settings will be initialized.

- 1 Turn off the unit.
- 2 Hold down the () (power) key for more than 3 seconds on the front panel of the unit.

Once settings have been initialized, the unit turns on, all indicators on the front panel flash for a moment, and then the unit can be operated.

* * * * * * * * *

- · In addition to basic unit settings, the following settings will also be initialized.
- Network Standby (p. 56)
- Bluetooth function (p. 57)

Initializing network settings

The following settings will be initialized.

- Settings for "Network" and "Bluetooth" in the setup menu
- Internet radio stations assigned to the NET RADIO 1–3 keys
- Bluetooth pairing information

Turn off the unit.

Press the ⁽¹⁾ (power) key while pressing the CONNECT key on the front panel of the unit.

Once settings have been initialized, the unit turns on, all indicators on the front panel flash for a moment, and then the unit can be operated.

• When network settings are initialized, the "Share Wi-Fi Settings (iOS)" screen will be displayed the next time the unit is turned on (p. 18).

APPENDIX

Troubleshooting

Refer to the chart below when this unit does not function properly. If the problem you are experiencing is not listed below or if the instruction below does not help, turn off the unit, disconnect the AC power supply cable, and contact the nearest authorized Yamaha dealer or service center.

General

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
This unit does not operate properly.	The internal microcomputer has been frozen by an external electric shock (such as lightning or excessive static electricity) or by a power supply with low voltage.	Disconnect the AC power supply cable from the outlet and plug it again in after 30 seconds.	_
This unit fails to turn on when \bigcirc	The AC power supply cable is not firmly connected to the AC wall outlet.	Connect the AC power supply cable firmly to the AC wall outlet.	17
key is pressed (the STATUS indicator flashes red), or the unit is turned off soon after the power has been turned on.	The internal microcomputer has been frozen by an external electric shock (such as lightning or excessive static electricity) or by a power supply with low voltage.	Disconnect the AC power supply cable from the outlet and plug it again in after 30 seconds.	_
This unit is suddenly turned off.	The internal temperature becomes too high and the overheat protection circuitry has been activated.	Wait for about 1 hour for this unit to cool down, turn it back on after confirming an adequate amount of ventilation space and not to cover this unit with a cloth.	12
	 When the Auto Power Standby function is enabled, this unit turns off automatically in any of the following situations: Audio is coming from the selected input source. However, no operations have been performed for 8 hours or more. HDMI, BLUETOOTH or NET is selected as the input source, but no audio has been input to the unit or no operations have been performed with the unit for more than 20 minutes. HDMI is selected as the input source, but no playback device has been connected to the unit's HDMI IN jack for more than 20 minutes. 	Turn on the power of the unit and play back the source again. If the Auto Power Standby function is not used, set "Auto Power Standby" to "Off" from the setup menu. Auto Power Standby can also be turned on or off using the keys on the front panel. With the unit turned off, hold down the INPUT key and press the O key, both on the front panel. The Auto Power Standby setting will be reversed and the unit will turn on. The O indicator on the front panel will glow for a few seconds when Auto Power Standby is switched off, and will not glow when Auto Power Standby is switched on.	52
	The network standby function is enabled, and the <i>Bluetooth</i> connection is terminated.	Resume the <i>Bluetooth</i> connection using the <i>Bluetooth</i> device, or turn on this unit and set "Network Standby" to "Off".	56
The indicator at far right flashes blue.	Firmware update has failed.	Turn the unit off and then on again, and try updating the firmware again. If the firmware update fails again, confirm that the unit is properly connected to a network. If firmware update using a USB flash drive fails, be sure that the USB flash drive is properly connected to the UPDATE ONLY jack, and that it contains the firmware update for this unit.	59

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
No sound.	Incorrect input or output cable connections.	Connect the cable properly.	16
	No appropriate input source has been selected.	Select an appropriate input source with the input selector keys.	22
	The volume is turned down.	Turn up the volume.	22
	The sound is muted.	Press the MUTE or VOLUME (+/-) key to resume audio output and adjust the volume level.	22
	There is input signal cannot be played back by this unit.	Play a source whose signals can be reproduced by this unit. Change the system settings of the source device.	72
	"HDMI Audio Out" is set to "TV".	Set to "AMP".	51
	"HDMI Control" is set to "Off".	When connecting ARC (Audio Return Channel) supported TV and this unit using an HDMI cable only, set "HDMI Control" to "On".	51
		To use this unit with "HDMI Control" set to "Off", connect the TV's audio output jack to this unit's TV (digital optical) jack via the optical cable.	15
	Sound from an HDMI control-enabled TV is set for output from the TV's built-in speakers.	Use the TV's HDMI settings to set audio output to any option other than the TV's built-in speakers.	-
No sound or too small sound from	The output level of the channel is muted.	Raise the output level of the channel.	24, 50
a specific channel.	Position is not properly specified.	Specify position in accordance with the unit's installation position.	19
	The source is played in stereo playback mode.	Switch to surround playback mode.	23
Surround sound effects are insubstantial.	When connecting this unit with playback device and TV digitally, the output setting of the playback device and TV is not valid.	Refer to the manual supplied with your device and check the setting.	Ι
	The playback device is set for constant output from 2 channels (PCM, etc.).	Change the playback device's audio output setting.	_
	Position is not properly specified.	Specify position in accordance with the unit's installation position.	19
	There is no wall in the path of the sound beam.	Place the sound reflection board in the path of the sound beam.	68
No sound is coming from the subwoofer.	The volume of the subwoofer is low.	Increase the volume of the subwoofer with the SUBWOOFER + key.	22
The volume of low (bass) tones	The volume of the subwoofer is low.	Increase the volume of the subwoofer with the SUBWOOFER + key.	22
	Content from an input source with a limited support for low tones is playing.	Play content from an input source with broader support for low tones to see if volume is still low.	-

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
The image is not displayed on TV screen.	The HDMI cable is not securely connected.	Connect the HDMI cable properly.	15, 16
The "This content can not be viewed on your TV. Please connect the TV which corresponds to HDCP2.2 with HDMI OUT of this unit." message is displayed on the TV screen and the input source does not play.	The HDMI IN jack on the TV, which is connected to the HDMI OUT (ARC) jack on the unit, is not compatible with HDCP 2.2.	Connect the unit to the HDMI IN jack that is compatible with HDCP 2.2 on a TV.	15
Menu screen of this unit is not displayed.	The input switch of TV is not set correctly.	Set the TV's input source to this unit.	18
A digital or high-frequency equipment produces noises.	The unit may be placed close to digital equipment or high-frequency equipment.	Move the equipment away from the unit.	-
The HDMI control function does	"HDMI Control" is set to "Off".	Set "HDMI Control" to "On".	51
not work properly.	The HDMI control function is disabled on your TV.	Refer to the manual supplied with your TV and check the setting.	-
	The number of the connected HDMI devices exceeds the limit.	Disconnect some of the HDMI devices.	-
Audio delay control function is not effective even "Audio Delay" is set to "Auto".	The TV does not support the audio delay auto adjustment feature.	Adjust timing of sound output manually from "Audio Delay".	50

Bluetooth

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
Cannot make the unit paired with	the <i>Bluetooth</i> device.		
Receiving/transmitting	"Bluetooth" is set to "Off".	Set it to "On".	57
	The device does not support A2DP.	Perform paring operations with a device which supports A2DP.	71
	The unit and device are too far apart.	Position the <i>Bluetooth</i> device so that it is less than 10 m (33 ft) from this unit and pair the device with this unit.	27, 29
There is a device (microwave oven, wireless LAN, etc.) outputs signals in the 2.4 GHz frequency band nearby.		Move this unit away from the device that is emitting radio frequency signals.	-
	Another <i>Bluetooth</i> device is connected.	Terminate current <i>Bluetooth</i> connection, and perform pairing with the new device.	28
Receiving	Bluetooth is not selected as the input source.	Select Bluetooth as the input source.	22
	A <i>Bluetooth</i> adaptor, etc. that you want to pair with the unit has a password other than "0000".	Use a <i>Bluetooth</i> adaptor, etc. whose password is "0000".	27
Transmitting	"Transmission" is set to "Off".	Set it to "On".	57

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
Cannot make a Bluetooth connect	ion.		
Receiving/transmitting	"Bluetooth" is set to "Off".	Set it to "On".	57
	Another <i>Bluetooth</i> device is connected.	The unit cannot make multiple <i>Bluetooth</i> connections. Terminate current <i>Bluetooth</i> connection, and make connection for the desired device.	28
	More than 20 devices are paired and the oldest pairing information is deleted.	Perform pairing again. The unit can be paired with up to 20 <i>Bluetooth</i> devices for receiving and transmitting audio. If a new device is successfully paired with the unit after 20 other devices have already been paired, the device with the earliest connecting date will have been unpaired to make room for the new device.	27
Transmitting	Attempted to establish a connection during playback with AirPlay.	Terminate AirPlay playback and try again to establish a connection.	30
No sound is produced or the soun	d is intermittent during playback.		
Receiving/transmitting	The Bluetooth connection of the unit with the device is disconnected.	Perform Bluetooth connection operations again.	28
	The unit and device are too far apart.	Move the Bluetooth device so that it is less than 10 m (33 ft) from this unit.	27, 29
	There is a device (microwave oven, wireless LAN, etc.) outputs signals in the 2.4 GHz frequency band nearby.	Move this unit away from the device that is emitting radio frequency signals.	_
	The device's Bluetooth function is off.	Enable the Bluetooth function of the device.	-
	The device's volume is set to minimum.	Turn up the volume level on the device.	-
Receiving	The device is not set to send Bluetooth audio signals to the unit.	Check that the Bluetooth function of the device is set properly.	-
	Playback on the device has not been performed.	Perform playback on the device.	-
Transmitting	Transmitted audio does not play.	Play audio from the device selected with the input selector key.	30

Remote control

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
The remote control does not work and/or function properly.	The wrong distance or angle.	The remote control functions within a maximum range of 6 m (20 ft) and no more than 30 degrees off-axis from the front panel.	4
	Direct sunlight or lighting (from an inverter type of fluorescent lamp, etc.) is striking the remote control sensor of this unit.	Reposition this unit.	-
	The batteries are weak.	Replace all batteries.	4
The TV cannot be operated	The TV Remote Repeater function is disabled.	Enable the TV Remote Repeater function.	58
using the TV Remote Repeater function.	A remote control using technology other than infrared is used (this unit may not support some infrared remote controls).	The TV Remote Repeater function cannot be used. Move the unit so that it does not block the remote control sensor on the TV, and use the TV's remote control to operate the TV.	_
	The unit and TV are too close together or too far apart.	Move the unit away from the TV more than 5 cm (2").	12
	The unit's power cable is unplugged.	Plug in the power cable.	17
	There is an object, such as a power cable, between the unit and TV.	Remove the obstacle.	-

Network

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
The network feature does not function.	The network parameters (IP address) have not been obtained properly.	Enable the DHCP server function on your router and set "DHCP" in the setup menu to "On" on the unit. If you want to configure the network parameters manually, check that you are using an IP address which is not used by other network devices in your network.	55
"Not connected" is displayed with "Wireless (Wi-Fi)" configuration; unable to connect to wireless router (access point).	The wireless router's MAC address filter is enabled.	A connection cannot be established if the wireless router's MAC address filter is enabled. Check wireless router (access point) settings and try a different connection method.	31, 32
"Not connected" is displayed with "Wireless (Wi-Fi)" configuration using the WPS function ("WPS Button" and "PIN Code") and "Access Point Scan"; unable to connect to wireless router (access point).		A connection cannot be established if the wireless router (access point) is configured so that it does not broadcast its SSID. Check wireless router (access point) settings and try a different connection method.	34, 35, 39
"Not connected" is displayed with "Wireless (Wi-Fi)" configuration using the WPS function ("WPS Button" and "PIN Code"); unable to connect to wireless router (access point).		A connection cannot be established using the WPS function. Try a different connection method.	34, 39
Playback stops unexpectedly and files cannot be played continuously.	The folder contains some files that cannot be played via the unit.	Delete or move files (including video or hidden files) that cannot be played via the unit from the folder.	-
The unit does not detect the PC.	The media sharing setting is not correct.	Configure the sharing setting and select the unit as a device to which music contents are shared.	42
	Some security software installed on your PC is blocking the access of the unit to your PC.	Check the settings of security software installed on your PC.	-
	The unit and PC are not in the same network.	Check the network connections and your router settings, and then connect the unit and the PC to the same network.	-
	The MAC address filter is enabled on the unit.	In "MAC Address Filter" in the setup menu, disable the MAC address filter or specify the MAC address of your PC to allow it to access to the unit.	55
The files in the PC cannot be viewed or played back.	The files are not supported by the unit or the media server.	Use the file format supported by both the unit and the media server.	42

Problem	Cause	Remedy	See page
The Internet radio cannot be played.	The selected Internet radio station is currently not available.	There may be a network problem at the radio station, or the service may have been stopped. Try the station later or select another station.	-
	The selected Internet radio station is currently broadcasting silence.	Some Internet radio stations broadcast silence at certain of times of the day. Try the station later or select another station.	-
	Access to the network is restricted by the firewall settings of your network devices (such as the router).	Check the firewall settings of your network devices. The Internet radio can be played only when it passes through the port designated by each radio station. The port number varies depending on the radio station.	_
The dedicated apps for mobile device does not detect the unit.	The MAC address filter is enabled on the unit.	In "MAC Address Filter" in the setup menu, disable the MAC address filter or specify the MAC address of your mobile device to allow it to access to the unit.	55
	The unit and mobile device are not in the same network.	Check the network connections and your router settings, and then connect the unit and mobile device to the same network.	-
Firmware update via the network (Network Update) fails.	It may not be possible depending on the condition of the network.	Update the firmware via the network (Network Update) again or use a USB flash drive.	59
The iPod does not recognize the unit when using AirPlay.	The unit and iPod/mobile device are connected to different SSIDs on the same access point.	Connect them to the same SSID.	
The app installed on a mobile device does not recognize the unit.			-
The unit cannot connect to	The wireless router (access point) is turned off.	Turn on the wireless router (access point).	-
the Internet via a wireless	The unit and the wireless router (access point) are too far apart.	Place the unit and the wireless router (access point) closer to each other.	-
	There is an obstacle between the unit and the wireless router (access point).	Move the unit and the wireless router (access point) in a location where there are no obstacles between them.	_
Wireless network is not found.	There is a device (microwave oven, wireless LAN, etc.) outputs signals in the 2.4 GHz frequency band nearby.	Move this unit away from the device that is emitting radio frequency signals.	-
	Access to the network is restricted by the firewall settings of the wireless router (access point).	Check the firewall setting of the wireless router (access point).	-

When surround effect is not enough

The unit achieves its surround sound effects by projecting sound beams which reflect off walls. The sound beams are not reflected toward to the listening position caused by furniture, etc., in the path of sound beams, or the room shape. In this case, the sound may become unbalanced.





Figure 1. Ideal condition



If the sound beams are not reflected toward to the listening position (figure 2), you can adjust for this by installing the optional sound reflection board YRB-100.



Figure 3. With a sound reflection board installed The sound beam for surround right is reflected correctly, and correct surround sound effect is achieved.

YRB-100 may not be available in some countries or regions.

How to install YRB-100

The unit outputs sound beams according to the "Position" settings (p. 19) as shown in the following illustrations.

Install the YRB-100 in the path of the sound beam.

shows the recommended install position.



FL: Front left FR: Front right SL: Surround left SR: Surround right

Position: Center





Position: Left

- Position: Right
- After installing the sound reflection board, refer to the YRB-100 owner's manual to adjust the height and angle. Playing test-tones from "Channel Level" in the setup menu is recommended when adjusting the board (p. 50).
- By installing the board close to your listening position, you can achieve clear surround sound positioning.

Note

· This unit does not have the function to automatically adjust sound beam angles. It is not necessary to adjust the sound beam angles, although the procedure is described in the owner's manual.

What is Surround Sound?

Surround sound offers the sense of being surrounded by sounds, an experience common in concert halls and movie theaters. This can be achieved by surrounding the audience with numerous speakers from which sound is output uniformly in all directions. This "surround sound" technology immerses the listener in sound with speakers positioned not only in front of the listener, but also behind and to the sides of the listener, making him or her feel as if they are actually in the situation.

For precise directional control and quality of sound reproduction, sounds must be split into separate audio channels for output to each speaker. Surround sound systems for regular home use (5.1-channel speaker systems) produce surround sound using five speakers and a subwoofer, as shown below:



As explained above, sounds can be reproduced for a great sense of presence by installing multiple speakers. However, this can be difficult to do in a living room. This unit utilizes "digital sound projector" technology to provide a realistic and engaging surround sound experience using only a slim center unit and subwoofer.

What is a Digital Sound Projector?

A digital sound projector separately controls compact speakers installed in orderly rows, so that optimized audio signals are output from each speaker and synthesized as highly focused sounds (sound beams).



When these focused sounds hit a hard wall, they are reflected off of the wall. A digital sound projector outputs sound beams from five channels, including front (left/right), center, and surround (left/right) channels, by reflecting these beams off of walls so that sounds reach the listener from the appropriate direction. It features a technology that enables true surround sound without requiring the installation of speakers in front of, or behind, the listener.



Yamaha's Audio Technologies

This unit features many more functions based on Yamaha's superior audio technologies.

Compressed Music Enhancer

This technology enhances and extends bass and treble, which tend to be weak in digitally compressed formats such as MP3 used with portable digital audio players and computers. This makes compressed audio sound more musically dynamic. With this unit, Compressed Music Enhancer is automatically activated when audio is input from a *Bluetooth* device.

CINEMA DSP

This technology enables precise digital recreation of actual acoustic environments found in well-known concert halls and movie theaters. This is achieved using Yamaha's exclusive sound field programs, which are based on data measured in various sound fields, and with which the amplitude, depth, and volume of sounds have been adjusted.

Clear Voice

This technology enables clear playback of speech (dialog, narrations, etc.) while maintaining the quality of background sound (music, sound effects, etc.). It enhances the acoustic characteristics of speech sounds and increases the perceived volume level.

Audio/video information

Sampling Frequency and Bit Depth

These are values that represent the amount of information used to convert analog signals to digital signals. They may be expressed as 48kHz/24bit, for example.

• Sampling Frequency

This defines the number of samples per second (sampling a finite set of discrete values in an analog signal). The higher the sampling rate, the broader the range of frequencies that can be played back.

• Bit Depth

This defines the amplitude value of sounds when quantifying analog signals as finite values. The higher the bit depth, the deeper sounds are reproduced.

Deep Color

This is a video technology supported by the HDMI standard. It processes RGB or YCbCr signals at bit depths of 10, 12, or 16 bits per color, whereas conventional formats utilize only 8-bit processing, enabling reproduction of more colors. Its gamut is comprised of a billion or more colors, while the gamuts of conventional formats are comprised of only millions of colors or less. This broader gamut results in more precise reproduction of colors and greater detail in darker portions.

Dolby Digital

This is a compressed audio format for 5.1 channels. It was developed by Dolby Laboratories, and is widely used with DVD discs.

Dolby Pro Logic II

This technology converts audio signal recorded in 2 channels to 5-channel signal.

DTS Digital Surround

This is a compressed audio format for 5.1 channels developed by DTS. It is widely used with DVD discs.

FLAC

FLAC is a file format for lossless audio data compression. FLAC is inferior to lossy compressed audio formats in compression rate but provides higher audio quality.

HDMI

High-Definition Multimedia Interface (HDMI) is a digital audio/video interface that has become an industry standard around the world. It is capable of transmitting both digital video and audio signals intact via a single cable. It is also compliant with the High-bandwidth Digital Content Protection (HDCP) standard. See http://www.hdmi.org for more information.

MP3

One of the compressed digital audio format used by MPEG. With psychoacoustic technologies, this compression method achieves a high compression rate. Reportedly, it is capable of compressing data quantity by about 1/10 maintaining a certain level of audio quality.

MPEG-4 AAC

An MPEG-4 audio standard. It is used for mobile telephones, portable audio players, and audio streaming services on Internet because it allows a high compression rate of data while maintaining better audio quality than MP3.

Pulse Code Modulation (PCM)

This technology records analog audio signals in digital form, converts analog audio signals to digital audio signals, and transmits analog audio signals in digital form. It is the underlying technology for all digital audio signal systems, and is widely used with CDs, Blu-ray Discs, and many other types of media as a uncompressed audio format known as Linear PCM.

WAV

Windows standard audio file format, which defines the method of recording the digital data obtained by converting audio signals. By default, the PCM method (no compression) is used, but you can also use other compression methods.

WMA (Windows Media Audio)

One of the compressed digital audio formats developed by Microsoft Corporation. With psychoacoustic technologies, this compression method achieves a high compression rate. Reportedly, it is capable of compressing data quantity by about 1/20 maintaining a certain level of audio quality.

x.v.Color

This is a color space supported by HDMI. It has become an international standard for video and offers a broader gamut than does the sRGB standard for expression of colors never before possible. It expands the color space while ensuring compatibility with the sRGB standard for more natural and vivid images.

Network information

SSID

SSID (Service Set Identifier) is a name that identifies a particular wireless LAN access point.

Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is a technology that allows an electronic device to exchange data or connect to the Internet wirelessly using radio waves. Wi-Fi offers the advantage of eliminating the complexity of making connections with network cables by using wireless connection. Only products that complete Wi-Fi Alliance interoperability tests can carry the "Wi-Fi Certified" trademark.

WPS

WPS (Wi-Fi Protected Setup) is a standard established by the Wi-Fi Alliance, which allows easy establishment of a wireless home network.

Specifications

Item		Specifications
Amplifier	Maximum Rated	Array speakers 2 W x 8
Ampinier	Output Power	Subwoofer 30 W x 2
	Туре	Acoustic suspension type
Array	Driver	Full range
		2.8 cm (1-1/8") cone magnetic shielding type x 8
speakers	Frequency Response	500 Hz to 22 kHz
	Impedance	4 Ω
	Туре	Bass reflex type
	Driver	8.5 cm (3-1/4") cone non-magnetic shielding type x 2
Subwoofer	Frequency Response	50 Hz to 500 Hz
	Impedance	6 Ω
Decoder	Supported audio signal (TV, BD/ DVD)	PCM (5.1ch), Dolby Digital, DTS Digital Surround
	HDMI	1 (HDMI IN)
Input Jacks	Digital (Optical)	1 (TV)
	Analog (RCA/stereo)	1 (ANALOG)
	HDMI	1 (HDMI OUT (ARC))
Output Jacks	Analog (RCA/monaural)	1 (SUBWOOFER OUT)
Othor Jacks	NETWORK	1
Other Jacks	UPDATE ONLY	1
Network		Compatible with DLNA ver. 1.5 AirPlay supported Internet Radio
	Wireless LAN Standards	IEEE802.11b/g/n
Wireless LAN	Radio Frequency Band	2.4 GHz
(*****)	WPS (Wi-Fi Protected Setup)	Push-Button-Method, PIN Method
	Security Type	WEP, WPA2-PSK (AES), Mixed Mode

Direct conneo devices	ction with mobile	Wireless Direct
	Bluetooth version	Ver. 2.1 +EDR
	Supported protocols	A2DP, AVRCP
	Supported codecs	Receiving: SBC, MPEG-4 AAC Transmitting: SBC
Bluetooth	Wireless output	Bluetooth Class 2
	Maximum communication distance	10 m ([33 ft] without obstructions)
	Supported content protection method	SCMS-T (receiving)
	Power Supply	U.S.A. and Canada models: AC 120 V, 60 Hz China model: AC 220 V, 50 Hz Taiwan model: AC 110-120 V, 50/60 Hz Other models: AC 220-240 V, 50/60 Hz
	Power Consumption	25 W
General	Standby Power Consumption	HDMI Control Off, Network Standby Off
	Dimensions (W x H x D)	With antenna: 1000 x 134 x 152 mm (39-3/8" x 5-1/4" x 6") Without antenna: 1000 x 65 x 130 mm (39-3/8" x 2-1/2" x 5-1/8")
	Weight	4.7 kg (10.4 lbs)

Specifications are subject to change without notice.

HDMI signal compatibility

Receivable audio signals

Audio signal types	Audio signal formats	Compatible media
2ch Linear PCM	2ch, 32–192 kHz, 16/20/24 bit	CD, DVD-Video, DVD-Audio, etc.
Multi-ch Linear PCM	6ch, 32–192 kHz, 16/20/24 bit	DVD-Audio, Blu-ray disc, HD DVD, etc.
Bitstream	Dolby Digital, DTS	DVD-Video, etc.

- · Refer to the supplied instruction manuals of the input source device, and set the device appropriately.
- When CPPM copy-protected DVD-Audio is played back, video and audio signals may not be output depending on the type of the DVD player.
- This unit is not compatible with HDCP-incompatible HDMI or DVI devices. Refer to the supplied instruction manuals of HDMI or DVI devices for HDCP compatibility.
- To decode audio bitstream signals on this unit, set the input source device appropriately so that the device outputs the bitstream audio signals directly (does not decode the bitstream signals on the device). Refer to the supplied instruction manuals for details.

Repeatable video signals

This unit is compatible with the following video signals.

- Deep Color
- x.v.Color
- 3D video signal

This unit is compatible with the following resolutions.

- VGA
- 480i/60 Hz
- 480p/60 Hz
 576i/50 Hz
- 1080p/60 Hz, 50 Hz, 30 Hz, 25 Hz, 24 Hz
- 4K/60 Hz, 50 Hz, 30 Hz, 25 Hz, 24 Hz
- 576p/50 Hz

The resolution of transmitted video signal varies according to specifications of the TV connected to this unit.

• 720p/60 Hz, 50 Hz

• 1080i/60 Hz, 50 Hz

Digital audio signal (optical)

Audio signal types	Audio signal formats	Compatible media
2ch Linear PCM	2ch, 32–96 kHz, 16/20/24 bit	CD, DVD-Video, DVD-Audio, etc.
Bitstream	Dolby Digital, DTS	DVD-Video, etc.

The "[CINEMADSP" logo and "Cinema DSP" are registered trademarks of Yamaha Corporation.

DOLBY AUDIO

Manufactured under license from Dolby Laboratories. Dolby, Pro Logic, and the double-D symbol are trademarks of Dolby Laboratories.

Contraction Contraction

For DTS patents, see http://patents.dts.com. Manufactured under license from DTS Licensing Limited.

DTS, the Symbol, & DTS and the Symbol together are registered trademarks, and DTS Digital Surround is a trademark of DTS, Inc. © DTS, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

ноті

"HDMI," the "HDMI" logo and "High-Definition Multimedia Interface" are trademarks, or registered trademarks of HDMI Licensing LLC.

x.v.Color

"x.v.Color" is a trademark of Sony Corporation.

Bluetooth[®]

The *Bluetooth*[®] word mark and logos are registered trademarks owned by *Bluetooth* SIG, Inc. and any use of such marks by Yamaha Corporation is under license.

Bluetooth

Bluetooth is a technology for wireless communication employing the 2.4 GHz frequency band, which can be used without a license.

Handling Bluetooth communications

- The 2.4 GHz band used by Bluetooth compatible devices is a radio band shared by many types of equipment. While Bluetooth compatible devices use a technology minimizing the influence of other components using the same radio band, such influence may reduce the speed or distance of communications and in some cases interrupt communications.
- The speed of signal transfer and the distance at which communications is possible differs according to the distance between the communicating devices, the presence of obstacles, radio wave conditions and type of equipment.
- Yamaha does not guarantee all wireless connections between this unit and devices compatible with *Bluetooth* function.

iTunes, AirPlay, iPad, iPhone, iPod, and iPod touch are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.

MusicCast

MusicCast is a trademark or registered trademark of Yamaha Corporation.



DLNA[™] and DLNA CERTIFIED[™] are trademarks or registered trademarks of Digital Living Network Alliance. All rights reserved. Unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.

Windows™

Windows is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and other countries.

Internet Explorer, Windows Media Audio and Windows Media Player are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

Android™

Android is a trademark of Google Inc.



The Wi-Fi CERTIFIED Logo is a certification mark of Wi-Fi Alliance. The Wi-Fi Protected Setup Identifier Mark is a certification mark of Wi-Fi Alliance.

Wi-Fi, Wi-Fi Alliance, Wi-Fi CERTIFIED, Wi-Fi Protected Setup, WPA and WPA2 are trademark or registered trademark of Wi-Fi Alliance.

"Blu-ray Disc[™]", "Blu-ray[™]", and the logos are trademarks of the Blue-ray Disc Association

Explanations regarding GPL

This product utilizes GPL/LGPL open-source software in some sections. You have the right to obtain, duplicate, modify, and redistribute this open-source code only. For information on GPL/ LGPL open source software, how to obtain it, and the GPL/LGPL license, refer to the Yamaha Corporation website (http://download.yamaha.com/sourcecodes/musiccast/).

Bluetooth protocol stack (Blue SDK)

Copyright 1999-2014 OpenSynergy GmbH All rights reserved. All unpublished rights reserved.

Index

Numerics

2-channel playback 23 3D video 15 4K video 15 5.1-channel 69

Α

Access point scan 35 AirPlay 45 Antenna 9, 13 App HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN) 6 App MusicCAST CONTROLLER 6 Audio assign 51 Audio information 24 Audio input signal information 53 Audio Return Channel (ARC) 15 Auto power standby 52

В

Bit depth 70 Bluetooth 26 Bluetooth (receiving audio) 27 Bluetooth (transmitting audio) 29 Bluetooth function (on/off) 57 Brightness of indicators 52

С

Channel level 50 CINEMA DSP 23 Compressed Music Enhancer 69

D

Deep Color 70 Default gateway 54, 55 Delay between video and audio output 50 DHCP 31, 55 DLNA 42 DNS server (P) 54, 55 DNS server (S) 54, 55 Dolby Digital 70 Dolby Pro Logic II 70 DTS Digital Surround 70 Dynamic range 50

Ε

Encryption method 34, 37, 39, 40

F

File format (computers/NAS) 42 Firmware update 56, 59 Firmware version 53

Н

HDCP version 2.2 15 HDMI 70 HDMI audio out 51 HDMI cable 15, 16 HDMI control 20, 51

Indicators 7, 8 Information (audio/video/firmware) 53 Initialization 61 Installation (Mounting the unit on a wall) 14 Installation position of the unit 19 Internet radio 43 IP address 54, 55 iPod music (AirPlay) 45 iTunes music (AirPlay) 45 L

Language (OSD) 19

Μ

MAC address 54 MAC address filter 31, 55 Manual setting (wireless connection) 37 Media sharing setup 42 Menu display 18 Mobile device music 47 MP3 70 MPEG-4 AAC 70

Ν

Network information 54 Network name 56 Network standby 56

0

OSD language 52

Ρ

Pairing 27, 29 Power cable 9, 17 Pulse Code Modulation (PCM) 70

R

Reflection board 68 Remote control 4, 10 Remote control sensor 7

S

Sampling frequency 70

Security 54 Security key 38, 40 Security software 31 Setup menu 48 Sharing Wi-Fi settings (iOS device) 18, 33 SSID 34, 36, 54, 70 Stereo playback 23 Subnet mask 31, 54 Subwoofer volume 22, 24 Surround mode 23 Surround sound effect 19

Т

Test sounds 50 TV 18, 20, 22 TV Remote Repeater 58

V

Video input signal information 53 Volume 22 Volume for each channel 24, 50 vTuner 43 vTuner ID 54

W

Wi-Fi 70 Wired network connections 17, 31 Wireless Direct 40 Wireless network 32 WPS 70 WPS PIN code 39

Х

x.v.Color 70

YAMAHA

YAMAHA CORPORATION

© 2015 Yamaha Corporation YH260A0/EN



UAB

Digital Sound Projector

YSP-1600

Quick Reference Guide

MusicCast

For more detailed information, refer to the Owner's Manual on the CD-ROM.

Caution: Do not attempt to play this CD-ROM in an audio player.

IMPORTANT SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS



• Explanation of Graphical Symbols



The lightning flash with arrowhead symbol, within an equilateral triangle, is intended to alert you to the presence of uninsulated "dangerous voltage" within the product's enclosure that may be of sufficient magnitude to constitute a risk of electric shock to persons.

The exclamation point within an equilateral triangle is intended to alert you to the presence of important operating and maintenance (servicing) instructions in the literature accompanying the appliance.

- 1 Read these instructions.
- 2 Keep these instructions.
- 3 Heed all warnings.
- 4 Follow all instructions.
- 5 Do not use this apparatus near water.
- 6 Clean only with dry cloth.
- 7 Do not block any ventilation openings. Install in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
- 8 Do not install near any heat sources such as radiators, heat registers, stoves, or other apparatus (including amplifiers) that produce heat.
- 9 Do not defeat the safety purpose of the polarized or grounding-type plug. A polarized plug has two blades with one wider than the other. A grounding type plug has two blades and a third grounding prong. The wide blade or the third prong are provided for your safety. If the provided plug does not fit into your outlet, consult an electrician for replacement of the obsolete outlet.
- 10 Protect the power cord from being walked on or pinched particularly at plugs, convenience receptacles, and the point where they exit from the apparatus.

- 11 Only use attachments/accessories specified by the manufacturer.
- 12 Use only with the cart, stand, tripod, bracket, or table specified by the manufacturer, or sold with the apparatus. When a cart is used, use caution when moving the cart/apparatus combination to avoid injury from tip-over.



- 13 Unplug this apparatus during lightning storms or when unused for long periods of time.
- 14 Refer all servicing to qualified service personnel. Servicing is required when the apparatus has been damaged in any way, such as power-supply cord or plug is damaged, liquid has been spilled or objects have fallen into the apparatus, the apparatus has been exposed to rain or moisture, does not operate normally, or has been dropped.

IMPORTANT

Please record the serial number of this unit in the space below. MODEL:

Serial No .:

The serial number is located on the rear of the unit. Retain this Owner's Manual in a safe place for future reference.

We Want You Listening For A Lifetime



Yamaha and the Electronic Industries Association's Consumer Electronics Group want you to get the most out of your equipment by playing it at a safe level. One that lets the sound come through loud and clear without annoying blaring or distortion – and, most importantly, without affecting your sensitive hearing. Since hearing damage from loud sounds is often undetectable until it is too late, Yamaha

and the Electronic Industries Association's Consumer Electronics Group recommend you to avoid prolonged exposure from excessive volume levels.

FCC INFORMATION (for US customers)

1 IMPORTANT NOTICE: DO NOT MODIFY THIS UNIT!

This product, when installed as indicated in the instructions contained in this manual, meets FCC requirements. Modifications not expressly approved by Yamaha may void your authority, granted by the FCC, to use the product.

- 2 **IMPORTANT:** When connecting this product to accessories and/or another product use only high quality shielded cables. Cable/s supplied with this product MUST be used. Follow all installation instructions. Failure to follow instructions could void your FCC authorization to use this product in the USA.
- 3 NOTE: This product has been tested and found to comply with the requirements listed in FCC Regulations, Part 15 for Class "B" digital devices. Compliance with these requirements provides a reasonable level of assurance that your use of this product in a residential environment will not result in harmful interference with other electronic devices.

This equipment generates/uses radio frequencies and, if not installed and used according to the instructions found in the users manual, may cause interference harmful to the operation of other electronic devices.

Compliance with FCC regulations does not guarantee that interference will not occur in all installations. If this product is found to be the source of interference, which can be determined by turning the unit "OFF" and "ON", please try to eliminate the problem by using one of the following measures:

Relocate either this product or the device that is being affected by the interference.

Utilize power outlets that are on different branch (circuit breaker or fuse) circuits or install AC line filter/s.

In the case of radio or TV interference, relocate/reorient the antenna. If the antenna lead-in is 300 ohm ribbon lead, change the lead-in to coaxial type cable.

If these corrective measures do not produce satisfactory results, please contact the local retailer authorized to distribute this type of product. If you can not locate the appropriate retailer, please contact Yamaha Corporation of America A/V Division, 6600 Orangethorpe Avenue, Buena Park, CA 90620, USA.

The above statements apply ONLY to those products distributed by Yamaha Corporation of America or its subsidiaries.

NOTICE

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

This equipment complies with FCC/IC radiation exposure limits set forth for an uncontrolled environment and meets the FCC radio frequency (RF) Exposure Guidelines and RSS-102 of the IC radio frequency (RF) Exposure rules. This equipment should be installed and operated keeping the radiator at least 20cm or more away from person's body.

This transmitter must not be co-located or operated in conjunction with any other antenna or transmitter.

COMPLIANCE INFORMATION STATEMENT (DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY PROCEDURE)

Responsible Party:	Yamaha Corporation of America A/V Division			
Address:	6600 Orangethorpe Avenue, Buena Park, CA 90620			
Telephone:	714-522-9011			
Type of Equipment:	Digital Sound Projector			
Model Name:	YSP-1600			
This device complies with Part 15 of FCC Rules and Industry Canada licence-exempt RSS				
tandard(s).				
Operation is subject to the following two conditions:				
(1)this device may not cause interference, and				
(2)this device must accept any interference, including interference that may cause undesired operation of this device.				

FOR CANADIAN CUSTOMERS

To prevent electric shock, match wide blade of plug to wide slot and fully insert. CAN ICES-3 (B)/NMB-3 (B)

CAUTION: READ THIS BEFORE OPERATING YOUR UNIT.

- 1 To assure the finest performance, please read this manual carefully. Keep it in a safe place for future reference.
- 2 Install this sound system in a well ventilated, cool, dry, clean place away from direct sunlight, heat sources, vibration, dust, moisture, and/or cold. For proper ventilation, allow the following minimum clearances.

Top: 10 cm (4 in), Rear: 10 cm (4 in), Sides: 10 cm (4 in)

- 3 Locate this unit away from other electrical appliances, motors, or transformers to avoid humming sounds.
- 4 Do not expose this unit to sudden temperature changes from cold to hot, and do not locate this unit in an environment with high humidity (i.e. a room with a humidifier) to prevent condensation inside this unit, which may cause an electrical shock, fire, damage to this unit, and/or personal injury.
- 5 Avoid installing this unit where foreign object may fall onto this unit and/or this unit may be exposed to liquid dripping or splashing. On the top of this unit, do not place:
 - Other components, as they may cause damage and/or discoloration on the surface of this unit.
 - Burning objects (i.e. candles), as they may cause fire, damage to this unit, and/or personal injury.
 - Containers with liquid in them, as they may fall and liquid may cause electrical shock to the user and/or damage to this unit.
- 6 Do not cover this unit with a newspaper, tablecloth, curtain, etc. in order not to obstruct heat radiation. If the temperature inside this unit rises, it may cause fire, damage to this unit, and/or personal injury.
- 7 Do not plug in this unit to a wall outlet until all connections are complete.
- 8 Do not operate this unit upside-down. It may overheat, possibly causing damage.
- 9 Do not use force on switches, knobs and/or cords.
- 10 When disconnecting the power cable from the wall outlet, grasp the plug; do not pull the cable.
- 11 Do not clean this unit with chemical solvents; this might damage the finish. Use a clean, dry cloth.
- 12 Only voltage specified on this unit must be used. Using this unit with a higher voltage than specified is dangerous and may cause fire, damage to this unit, and/or personal injury. Yamaha will not be held responsible for any damage resulting from use of this unit with a voltage other than specified.
- 13 To prevent damage by lightning, keep the power cable and outdoor antennas disconnected from a wall outlet or this unit during a lightning storm.
- 14 Do not attempt to modify or fix this unit. Contact qualified Yamaha service personnel when any service is needed. The cabinet should never be opened for any reasons.
- 15 When not planning to use this unit for long periods of time (i.e. vacation), disconnect the AC power plug from the wall outlet.
- 16 Be sure to refer to the "Troubleshooting" section of the Owner's Manual on the CD-ROM for common operating errors before concluding that this unit is faulty.
- 17 Before moving this unit, press & to set it to standby mode and disconnect the AC power plug from the wall outlet.
- 18 Condensation will form when the surrounding temperature changes suddenly. Disconnect the power cable from the outlet, then leave this unit alone.

- 19 When using this unit for a long time, this unit may become warm. Turn the power off, then leave this unit alone for cooling.
- 20 Install this unit near the AC outlet and where the AC power plug can be reached easily.
- 21 The batteries shall not be exposed to excessive heat such as sunshine, fire or the like. When you dispose of batteries, follow your regional regulations.
- 22 Excessive sound pressure from earphones and headphones can cause hearing loss.
- 23 Keep the product out of reach of children to avoid them swallowing small parts.

This unit is not disconnected from the AC power source as long as it is connected to the wall outlet, even if this unit itself is turned off by \mathfrak{G} . This state is called the standby mode. In this state, this unit is designed to consume a very small quantity of power.

WARNING

TO REDUCE THE RISK OF FIRE OR ELECTRIC SHOCK, DO NOT EXPOSE THIS UNIT TO RAIN OR MOISTURE.

Do not use this unit within 22 cm (9 inches) of persons with a heart pacemaker implant or defibrillator implant.

Radio waves may affect electro-medical devices. Do not use this unit near medical devices or inside medical facilities.

The name plate of YSP-1600 is located on the bottom of the unit.

We, Yamaha Music Europe GmbH hereby declare that this unit is in compliance with the essential requirements and other relevant provisions of Directive 1999/5/EC.

CE

Yamaha Music Europe GmbH

Siemensstr. 22-34 25462 Rellingen, Germany Tel: +49-4101-303-0

Notes on remote controls and batteries

- · Do not spill water or other liquids on the remote control.
- Do not drop the remote control.
- Do not leave or store the remote control in the following conditions:
- places of high humidity, such as near a bath
- places of high temperatures, such as near a heater or stove
- places of extremely low temperatures
- dusty places
- Insert the battery according to the polarity markings (+ and -).
- If the batteries grow old, the effective operation range of the remote control decreases considerably. If this happens, replace the batteries with two new ones as soon as possible.
- If the batteries run out, immediately remove them from the remote control to prevent an explosion or acid leak.
- If you find leaking batteries, discard the batteries immediately, taking care not to touch the leaked material. If the
 leaked material comes into contact with your skin or gets into your eyes or mouth, rinse it away immediately and
 consult a doctor. Clean the battery compartment thoroughly before installing new batteries.
- Do not use old batteries together with new ones. This may shorten the life of the new batteries or cause old batteries to leak.
- Do not use different types of batteries (such as alkaline and manganese batteries) together. Danger of explosion may
 happen if batteries are incorrectly replaced. Specification of batteries may be different even though they look the
 same.
- · Before inserting new batteries, wipe the compartment clean.
- Keep batteries away from children. If a battery is accidentally swallowed, contact your doctor immediately.
- When not planning to use the remote control for long periods of time, remove the batteries from the remote control.
- · Do not charge or disassemble the supplied batteries.

For U.K. customers

If the socket outlets in the home are not suitable for the plug supplied with this appliance, it should be cut off and an appropriate 3 pin plug fitted. For details, refer to the instructions described below.

Note

The plug severed from the mains lead must be destroyed, as a plug with bared flexible cord is hazardous if engaged in a live socket outlet.

Special Instructions for U.K. Model

IMPORTANT

THE WIRES IN MAINS LEAD ARE COLOURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING CODE:

Blue: NEUTRAL

Brown: LIVE

As the colours of the wires in the mains lead of this apparatus may not correspond with the coloured markings identifying the terminals in your plug, proceed as follows:

The wire which is coloured BLUE must be connected to the terminal which is marked with the letter N or coloured BLACK. The wire which is coloured BROWN must be connected to the terminal which is marked with the letter L or coloured RED.

Making sure that neither core is connected to the earth terminal of the three pin plug.

Information for Users on Collection and Disposal of Old Equipment and Used Batteries



These symbols on the products, packaging, and/or accompanying documents mean that used electrical and electronic products and batteries should not be mixed with general household waste.

For proper treatment, recovery and recycling of old products and used batteries, please take them to applicable collection points, in accordance with your national legislation and the Directives 2002/96/ EC and 2006/66/EC.

By disposing of these products and batteries correctly, you will help to save valuable resources and prevent any potential negative effects on human health and the environment which could otherwise arise from inappropriate waste handling.

For more information about collection and recycling of old products and batteries, please contact your local municipality, your waste disposal service or the point of sale where you purchased the items.

[Information on Disposal in other Countries outside the European Union]

Uni The: plea

Pb

These symbols are only valid in the European Union. If you wish to discard these items, please contact your local authorities or dealer and ask for the correct method of disposal.

Note for the battery symbol (bottom two symbol examples):

This symbol might be used in combination with a chemical symbol. In this case it complies with the requirement set by the Directive for the chemical involved.

For more detailed information, refer to the Owner's Manual on the CD-ROM. To view the Owner's Manual, click on "English" in the screen displayed automatically when you insert the CD-ROM into your PC, or click on the model name if the screen to select models is displayed, and then click on "English" in the next screen. Then, follow the onscreen instructions. If the screen is not displayed automatically, open the "index.html" in the CD-ROM.

Caution: Do not attempt to play this CD-ROM in an audio player.

The Owner's Manual contained in the CD-ROM can be downloaded from the following website.

http://download.yamaha.com/

About this Quick Reference Guide

The Quick Reference Guide provides instructions for connecting a TV and BD/DVD player to the unit, applying settings, and playing content. For more information on operations, refer to the Owner's Manual in the supplied CD-ROM.

Read the safety instructions described in this booklet before using the unit. For instructions on how to operate or set the external devices, refer to the owner's manual supplied with each devices.

• 💥 indicates supplementary explanations for better use.

• I indicates precautions for use of the unit and its feature limitations.

Supplied accessories

Before connecting, make sure you have received all of the following items.



Preparing remote control

Before installing batteries or using the remote control, be sure to read battery and remote control precautions in this booklet.





1 Installation

Place the unit on a flat surface. When installing this unit on a rack behind which there is limited space, for example, it may be easier to connect external devices to this unit first. See page 10 for information regarding the connection of external devices.

Notes

- Be sure to install this unit on a large, stable stand where it does not fall subject to vibrations, such as from an earthquake, and where it is out of the reach of children.
- The unit's speakers are not magnetically shielded. Do not install hard disk drives or similar devices near the unit.
- Do not stack the unit directly on top of other playback devices, or vice versa. Heat and vibrations may result in damage or malfunction.

Recommended place for installation





Unit installation position and surround sound effects

The unit achieves surround sound by reflecting sound beams off walls.



Effective surround effect may not be achieved in the following environment.

- Sound beams are blocked by obstacles such as furniture.
- The room size is not within the following dimensions;
- Width: 3 meters to 7 meters (9.8 ft to 23 ft)
- Depth: 3 meters to 7 meters (9.8 ft to 23 ft)
- Height: 2 meters to 3.5 meters (6.6 ft to 11.5 ft)
- Listening position is too close to the unit.
- The unit is installed too close to the left or right wall.
- The unit is installed in the corner of the room.
- There is no wall for reflecting sound beam on the path of the sound beams.

• The optimum surround sound effect is achieved by setting a position according to the installation position of the unit. For details, refer to "[3] Surround sound effect for the installation position" (p. 12).

Raising the antenna

Raise the antenna on the rear panel of the unit when connecting a wireless router (access point) to use a network.



Hold the base of the antenna while raising it to its upright position.

- Do not apply excessive force on the antenna. Doing so may damage it.
- Be sure to check the direction in which the antenna moves, and angle it in the proper direction.
- Do not remove the antenna.

• For details on the wireless connection, refer to page 32 in the Owner's Manual.



2 Connections

Connecting a TV and BD/DVD player

For the cable connection, follow the procedure below. See page 16 in the Owner's Manual when connecting other playback devices such as a game console.



MYAMAHA

CLEAR VOICE

(+

SUBWOOFER

ном

TV PROGRAM STEREO

ENTER

 \mathbf{T}

CHIEVE

•

VOLUME

Turning on the unit

Press the 🛈 key.

When the unit is turned on for the first time after purchase, the \cong indicator on the front panel will flash slowly. The screen below will be displayed on the TV when the TV is turned on.



(h)

ENTER

RETURN

 When the screen is not displayed, use the input button on the TV's remote control to switch input so that video input from this unit is displayed. When this unit is connected to the TV as shown on page 10, select "HDMI 1".

 The language used for menu display (OSD Language) can be selected from the screen shown above. Use the </ >
 key to select the language, and follow the on-screen instructions. The OSD language can also be changed from the setup menu at any time. Press and hold the SETUP key until the "OSD Language" menu is displayed on the TV, and use the ▲/▼ key to select the language. Press the SETUP key to exit the setup menu.

While this screen is displayed, an iOS device (such as an iPhone) can be used to easily connect the unit to a wireless network. Follow the procedure "Connecting the unit to a wireless network" on this page.

If you will not use an iOS device to connect to a wireless network, press the RETURN key and proceed to "[3] Surround sound effect for the installation position".

- This screen will not be displayed and the indicator will not flash if the unit is connected to a router via its NETWORK jack (wired connection).
- See page 31 in the Owner's Manual for wireless network connection methods other than "Share Wi-Fi Settings", or for more information regarding wired and wireless networks.

Connecting the unit to a wireless network

Press the ENTER key.

The screen below is displayed.

S	۱a	r e	Wi	- F	i	s e	tting	s
Make conne netwo Wi-Fi your	su ct rk si 0	re ed , ; et [;] S (yo to and tin dev	ur y t gs ic	i ou he s e.	OS r N n o c r o	devi Ni-Fi open een o	ceis the f
	[[E I R E ⁻	N T E T U R	R] N]	: c : c	on an	firm cel	

- · You need iOS device with iOS 7.1 or later.
- Before proceeding, confirm that your iOS device is connected to a wireless router (access point).

Press the ENTER key.

3 Display the Wi-Fi setup screen on the iOS device and select the unit from "SETUP A NEW AIRPLAY SPEAKER...".

iOS (an example of English version)





4 Select the network (access point) of which you want to share the settings with the unit.

iOS (an example of English version)



.

 You can use this function to connect to a wireless network at any time by selecting "Share Wi-Fi Settings (iOS)" from the setup menu. However, be aware that if a different wireless network, or a *Bluetooth* device, has already been configured, doing so will erase any previous settings.

3 Surround sound effect for the installation position

The surround sound is achieved by reflecting the sound beams off walls as shown in the illustration below. For optimum surround effect, turn on the unit and select the POSITION key according to the installation position of the unit.

Hold down the POSITION key that corresponds to the installation position of the unit for more than 3 seconds.

The indicators on the front panel flash according to the set position.

Left	*	┈	<u> </u>					
Center				<u>`</u> ∦<-	- <u>)</u>	米		
Right							 	崇



MYAMAHA

CLEAR VOIC

+

SUBWOOFER

4 Playback

Enjoying TV

Select the desired TV channel.

Press the TV key.

. When audio is output from the TV speaker, set TV's audio output to any option other than TV. See the instructions manual of TV for more information.

HDMI control function You can use the TV remote control to operate this unit if your TV supports the HDMI control function. See page 20 in the Owner's Manual.

Playing a DVD or BD

The following explains the playback procedure when this unit is connected to the TV and BD/DVD player as shown in "Connecting a TV and BD/DVD player" (p. 10).

1 Turn on the TV and BD/DVD player connected to this unit.

Press the HDMI key to select the BD/DVD player as the input source.

Indicator on the front panel HDM Glows

- 3 Use the TV's remote control to switch the TV's input to HDMI 1.
- Play back a DVD or BD on the BD/DVD player.

5 Press the VOL (+/-) key to adjust the volume.

When the volume is adjusted, indicators on the front panel indicate volume level.

The number of lighted indicators increases when the volume is turned up, and decreases when the volume is turned down.

Volume down (–) \leftarrow Volume up (+)

Press one of the surround mode keys according to your preferences.

See page 23 in the Owner's Manual for details.

When this unit does not play back, check the following

- The unit and BD/DVD player are connected correctly.
- · The audio output settings of the BD/DVD player is set to digital sound output (bitstream).
- The TV's input is switched to this unit.

The unit is equipped with a number of other functions not described in this booklet. See the Owner's Manual for details.

Main features

- The ability to play audio from a Bluetooth device
- The ability to play an audio source over a network
- Dedicated MusicCast CONTROLLER and HOME THEATER CONTROLLER (WLAN) apps

Surround mode kevs

+OLUN VOLUME (+/-)

•

HDMI

TV

AVEG1A1102C

English

Important Notice:Guarantee Information for customers in EEA* and Switzerland

For detailed guarantee information about this Yamaha product, and Pan-EEA* and Switzerland warranty service, please either visit the website address below (Printable file is available at our website) or contact the Yamaha representative office for your country. *EEA:European Economic Area

http://europe.yamaha.com/warranty/



YSP-1600 Firmware Update Version 2.19

Yamaha is pleased to offer the following firmware update to ensure the best possible performance and latest features for your Digital Sound Projector.

This firmware1. Enables MusicCast functions. For further information, please visit http://www.yamaha.com/musiccast/2. Improves wireless connectivity

CHECK THE UNIT'S FIRMWARE VERSION PRIOR TO THIS UPDATE

On the remote control, press the **SETUP** button.

Select "**Information**" > "**System**". Your current firmware version is displayed on front window. If your firmware version is **2.19 or higher**, the Digital Sound Projector is already up-to-date.

If not, conduct firmware update by following the instruction.

Registered Date : 9/24/2015 Language : English Size : 28.13 MB

UPDATING THE UNIT'S FIRMWARE

🛞 YAMAHA 1 2 A / V ENTER (ETUR) \bigtriangledown SETUP (+) Θ MUTE $\overline{ }$ C B

New firmware that provides additional features or product improvements will be released as needed. If the unit is connected to the Internet, you can download the firmware via the network and update it.

When the unit is turned on for the first time after a new version of the unit's firmware has been released, a message indicating that a firmware update is available will be displayed on the TV screen, and an envelope icon (() will be displayed in the setup menu.

The unit's firmware can be updated as follows.

- Update firmware from "Network Update" in the setup menu. Update firmware by connecting a USB flash drive to which the unit's firmware update has been saved.
- Update firmware using the dedicated MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on a mobile device. Follow MusicCast CONTROLLER guides to operate the app and update the

firmware.

Notes

- Do not operate the unit or disconnect the power cable or network cable during firmware update. Firmware update takes about 20 minutes or more (depending on your Internet connection speed)
- If the Internet connection speed is slow, or the unit is connected to the wireless network, network update may not be possible depending on the condition of the network connection. In this case, update the firmware using the USB flash drive
- To perform the following procedure, your TV must be connected to the unit via номі
- For details on update, visit the Yamaha website

Using "Network Update" in the setup menu to update firmware

1 Press the SETUP key twice.

The setup menu is displayed on the TV screen.

- **2** Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Network", and then press the ENTER key.
- **3** Use the \blacktriangle/∇ keys to select "Network Update", and then press the ENTER key.

The following screen is displayed when firmware updates are available.





• To cancel the operation without updating the firmware, press the SETUP kev

4 Press the ENTER key.

The TV screen goes black and firmware update begins. The indicators on the front panel glow to indicate progress during the update.



· If there are multiple firmware updates, the indicators will start glowing as each firmware update begins.

5 When the indicators on the front panel glow alternately as shown below, press the () (power) key on the unit's front panel.



The firmware update is complete

O

• If the firmware update fails, the indicator at far right will flash blue. Use the o (power) key to turn the unit off and then on again, and repeat the procedure from step 1 again. If the firmware update fails again, confirm that the unit is properly connected to a network.

- the following.
- contains the firmware update for this unit
- The unit is properly connected to a network.

Updating firmware with connection of a USB flash drive

Download the latest firmware version from the Yamaha website to a USB flash drive, which can then be used to update the unit's firmware. See information provided when updating firmware for details.

- Save this unit's firmware to a USB flash drive.
- Turn off the unit.
- **3** Connect the USB flash drive to the UPDATE ONLY jack on the unit's rear panel.

on the unit.

The firmware update will begin. The indicators on the front panel glow to indicate progress during the update.

begins.

5

4 Press the \bigcirc key on the front panel while pressing the VOLUME – key



• If there are multiple firmware updates, the indicators will start glowing as each firmware update

When the indicators on the front panel glow alternately as shown below, press the () (power) key on theunit's front panel.



The firmware update is complete.

• If the firmware update fails, the indicator at far right will flash blue. Use the 也 (power) key to turn the unit off and then on again, and repeat the procedure from step 1 again. If the firmware update fails again, confirm

- The USB flash drive is correctly connected to the UPDATE ONLY jack

- See information provided as firmware updates are performed, and be sure that the USB flash drive



MusicCast Setup Guide

Home Audio Network with MusicCast

MusicCast is a brand new wireless musical solution from Yamaha, allowing you to share music among all of your rooms with a variety of devices. You can enjoy music from your smartphone, PC, NAS drive and music streaming service anywhere in your house with one easy-to-use app. For more details and a lineup of MusicCast compatible products, visit our website.



Key features

- Seamlessly control all MusicCast compatible devices with the dedicated "MusicCast CONTROLLER" app.
- Link a MusicCast compatible device to another device in a different room and play them back simultaneously.
- Play back music from music streaming services. (The compatible music streaming services may differ depending on your region and product. Refer to the product information on our website for details.)

EN
FR
DE
sv
IT
ES
NL
RU
ZH
КО
JA

Setting Up

Preparation of the devices

Mobile device (smartphone, etc.)



To use the network features on the MusicCast compatible device, you need the dedicated app "MusicCast CONTROLLER" for the operation. Search for the free app "MusicCast CONTROLLER" on App Store (for iOS devices) or Google Play (for Android devices) and install it to your device.

For details, refer to the instructions for this app in each store.

Connect the mobile device in which MusicCast CONTROLLER has been installed to the wireless router in your home.

If your router supports multiple SSID's (network names), connect the mobile device to the first access point ("SSID 1", etc.)

Setting of the devices and playback

Create the following network (MusicCast Network) using the MusicCast CONTROLLER app.



1 Turn on the MusicCast compatible device.

2 Tap the MusicCast CONTROLLER app icon on your mobile device and tap "Setup."

Tip

If you have already connected a MusicCast compatible device to the network, tap "Settings" and then "Add New Device."

3 Operate the MusicCast CONTROLLER app following the onscreen instructions, then press and hold the CONNECT button of the MusicCast compatible device (or the remote control) for three seconds.

Refer to the Owner's Manual of each MusicCast compatible device for the CONNECT button.



4 Set up the network

Operate the MusicCast CONTROLLER app following the onscreen instructions to set up the network.

5 Operate the MusicCast CONTROLLER app to playback.

Тір

If you want to install a MusicCast compatible device to a location that is out of range of the wireless router, connect
another MusicCast support device to the router with a network cable to extend the range (Extend mode).



 Depending on where it is placed, the MusicCast compatible device may not be able to play back a high-resolution audio source. In this case, connect the device directly to the router with a network cable.

Troubleshooting

Refer also to the troubleshooting section in the relevant Owner's Manual for the MusicCast compatible device.

Problem/Cause	Remedy				
No sound from the MusicCast compatible device.					
	Turn on the device.				
The device is turned on.	Enable network standby on the device.				
The device is not connected to the MusicCast network.	Connect the device with the MusicCast CONTROLLER app.				
Cannot make the connection settings on the MusicCast app.					
The mobile device is not connected to the wireless	Connect the mobile device to the wireless router and start the MusicCast CONTROLLER app.				
router at your home.	Disable the cellular data transmission.				
	Turn on the MusicCast compatible device.				
The MusicCast compatible device is turned on.	Enable network standby on the device.				
Cannot connect to the network.					
The network parameters (IP address) have not been obtained properly.	Enable the DHCP server function on your router.				
The setting of the wireless router has been changed.	Connect all MusicCast compatible devices to the network with the MusicCast CONTROLLER app.				
The MusicCast CONTROLLER app cannot detect a MusicCast compatible device.					
The mobile device is not connected to the wireless router at your home.	Connect the mobile device to the wireless router, and set the MusicCast compatible device with the MusicCast CONTROLLER app again.				
The Music Cast compatible douice is turned off	Turn on the device.				
The music cast compatible device is turned off.	Enable network standby on the device.				

For further information, please visit our website:

http://www.yamaha.com/musiccast/

MusicCast is a trademark or registered trademark of Yamaha Corporation.

Android and Google Play are trademarks of Google Inc.

iPhone, iPad and AirPlay are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.

トラブルシューティング

取扱説明書に記載のトラブルシューティングもご覧ください。

症状 / 原因	対策				
MusicCast 対応機器から音が出ない					
MusicCast かけた機関の電波がナフルナーフレス	MusicCast 対応機器の電源をオンにしてください。				
MUSICCASL対応機器の電源がオノになっている。	ネットワークスタンバイをオン(有効)にしてください。				
MusicCast 対応機器が MusicCast ネットワークに 接続されていない。	MusicCast CONTROLLER を使い、接続してください。				
MusicCast CONTROLLER で接続の設定ができない。					
モバイル端末がご家庭のルーターに接続されてい	モバイル端末をルーターに接続した後、MusicCa CONTROLLER で設定してください。				
ない。	モバイル端末のモバイルデータ通信を無効にしてくだ さい。				
MusicCast かけた機関の電波がナフルたっている	MusicCast 対応機器の電源をオンにしてください。				
MUSICCASE対応機器の電源がオフになっている。	ネットワークスタンバイをオン(有効)にしてください。				
ネットワークに接続できない					
ネットワーク情報(IP アドレス) が正しく取得されて いない。	ルーターの DHCP サーバー機能を有効にしてください。				
ルーターの設定が変更された。	もう一度、MusicCast CONTROLLER ですべての MusicCast 対応機器を接続してください。				
MusicCast CONTROLLER から MusicCast 対応機器が認識されない。					
モバイル端末がご家庭のルーターに接続されていない。	モバイル端末をルーターに接続した後、MusicCast CONTROLLER で設定してください。複数の SSID を持 つルーターに接続する場合は、MusicCast 対応機器と 同じ SSID のネットワークに接続してください。				
	MusicCast 対応機器の電源をオンにしてください。				
MusicCast 対応機器の電源がオフになっている。	ネットワークスタンバイをオン(有効)に設定してくだ さい。				

更に詳しい情報については、以下のサイトをご覧ください。

http://www.yamaha.com/musiccast/

MusicCast はヤマハ株式会社の商標です。

Android、GooglePlay は Google Inc. の商標です。

iPhone、iPad、AirPlay は、米国およびその他の国々で登録されている Apple Inc. の商標です。 iPhone 商標は、アイホン株式会社のライセンスに基づき使用されています。

YAMAHA CORPORATION



Supplement for Pandora®

The Pandora service is available in the U.S.A., Australia and New Zealand only.

Notes

- Configure basic settings for the MusicCast CONTROLLER app before using the service.
- To use this function, the unit must be connected to the Internet. For detail on connections and network settings, refer to "Owner's Manual".

Pandora is a free, personalized Internet radio service playing only music you love. Enter your favorite artists or tracks and Pandora will bring an effortless personal soundtrack into your living room. Rate tracks as they play, because Pandora caters to your tastes and adapts stations to your feedback on the spot.

Since all Pandora accounts are portable, you can always access your own personalized Pandora stations from any computer or device in the United States, Australia and New Zealand that supports Pandora.

Pandora is currently only available within these countries due to licensing restrictions. Pandora is always free, with the option to upgrade to Pandora One which is completely free of all advertising and comes with additional features.

For more information, http://www.pandora.com

Pandora account sign-in

To start using the Pandora service on this unit, sign in to your account using the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device. Follow the instructions on the app screen.

Playback of Pandora content

Use the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device to select the Pandora service.

Pandora, the Pandora logo, and the Pandora trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of Pandora Media, Inc. Used with permission.



Supplement for Rhapsody®

The Rhapsody[®] service is available in the U.S.A. only.

Prohibition

 It is strictly prohibited to modify, reproduce, reverseengineer or use this unit and/or built-in software for use other than audiovisual purposes.

Notes

- Configure basic settings for the MusicCast CONTROLLER app before using the service.
- To use this function, the unit must be connected to the Internet. For detail on connections and network settings, refer to "Owner's Manual".

The Rhapsody[®] service is the power behind the Rhapsody[®] Media Player (the Rhapsody[®] player software that you can download to your computer). Rhapsody® service supplies the music, keeps My Library up to date, provides you with Rhapsody® channels, the Playlist Central online community, and manages your downloads. Your software connects to Rhapsody[®] service through the internet. Because your account information and Rhapsody® content are on servers instead of any individual computer, your music is infinitely portable. Much of what you see in the Display area comes from Rhapsody[®] service. What you can do with Rhapsody® service depends on your subscription.

You can use Rhapsody[®] service for free, or get even more from a paid membership. The Rhapsody[®] service also brings you Rhapsody[®] Online, a streamlined, internet version of Rhapsody[®] that you can access from almost anywhere. Just sign in to your Rhapsody[®] account to start letting the Rhapsody[®] service work for you.

For more information,

http://www.rhapsody.com/

Rhapsody[®] account sign-in

To start using the Rhapsody[®] service on this unit, sign in to your account using the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device. Follow the instructions on the app screen.

Playback of Rhapsody® contents

Use the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device to select the Rhapsody[®] service.

C Rhapsody

Rhapsody and the Rhapsody logo are registered trademarks of Rhapsody International, Inc.



YAMAHA CORPORATION © 2015 Yamaha Corporation ZS95430

Supplement to Listen to SiriusXM

English

Notes

- Configure basic settings for the MusicCast CONTROLLER app before using the service.
- To use this function, the unit must be connected to the Internet. For detail on connections and network settings, refer to "Owner's Manual".
- Available functions may vary according to your location. Service areas of Network Music Services are limited. Service areas may change without notice.

With SiriusXM, you get over 155 SiriusXM channels, including commercial-free music from nearly every genre, plus the best sports, talk, news and entertainment.

How to Access SiriusXM on this unit

Current SiriusXM Subscribers:

If you have a paid All Access subscription, or a trial subscription to the SiriusXM All Access package in your vehicle, use your existing streaming username and password to log in and listen on this unit. If you have not already set up a username and password, download the SiriusXM app to your smartphone or tablet and follow the instructions to log in, or go to siriusxm.com.

If you do not have a subscription to the SiriusXM All Access package, follow the instructions on this unit to set up a username and password and add streaming to your current subscription for 30 days, at no cost.

If you do not have a SiriusXM subscription:

You will be offered a 30-day trial subscription to the SiriusXM streaming service when you provide your email and zip/postal code.

American and Canadian customers can also contact SiriusXM by calling 1-888-539-7474 to subscribe.

Your service will automatically stop at the end of your trial unless you subscribe. If you do not wish to enjoy your no-obligation trial, you can cancel it by calling 1-866-635-2349. If you decide to continue service after your trial, the subscription plan you choose will automatically renew thereafter and you will be charged according to your chosen payment method at then-current rates. Fees and taxes apply. To cancel you must call us at 1-866-635-

2349. See our Customer Agreement for complete terms at siriusxm.com.

All fees and programming are subject to change.

You may always change your Privacy Preferences with us. See our Customer Agreement and Privacy Policy for complete terms at <u>www.siriusxm.com.</u>

For Canadian customers

During the 30-day free trial period you will only have access to free trial content; even if you have fully subscribed during the trial period. After the 30-day free trial period Canadian-based subscribers will have access to Canadian content.

SiriusXM account sign-in

To start using the SiriusXM service on this unit, sign in to your account using the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device. Follow the instructions on the app screen.

Playback of SiriusXM content

Use the MusicCast CONTROLLER app installed on your mobile device to select the SiriusXM service.

(((SiriusXM[°])))

SiriusXM and all related marks and logos are trademarks of Sirius XM Radio Inc. and its subsidiaries. All rights reserved.



Supplement for Spotify

English

Spotify gives you instant access to millions of songs on your mobile devices. Just hit play to stream anything you like.

The Spotify Connect feature lets you choose music on your Spotify app and listen on your Yamaha home entertainment system.

See spotify.com for service area information.

Connect your device to your home Wi-Fi network

Connect the unit and your mobile or tablet to your home Wi-Fi network as shown in the illustration below. All devices need to be on the same network.

Network connection (example)



* iOS/Android™ apps are available as of December 2013. For more details, visit spotify.com

!

 To use this function, this unit and your mobile or tablet must be connected to the Internet. For detail on connections and network settings, refer to "Owner's Manual".

Get Spotify app and premium free trial

Download the Spotify app for your mobile or tablet from your app store, and take the Premium free trial.

The Spotify app and Premium account are required. Visit spotify.com for details.

www.spotify.com/connect

Playback of Spotify contents

Start Spotify app on your mobile or tablet device, log in to Spotify and start playing a track.

- (1) Tap on the Now Playing bar to reveal extra controls and tap the Speaker icon.
- ② Select the unit (network name of the unit) as the audio output device.

Spotify app (example)





The playback screen is displayed on the TV connected to the unit.

The Spotify Software is subject to third party licenses found here:





Spotify and Spotify logo are registered trademarks of the Spotify Group.

Say hello to **Spotify Premium**

Spotify Premium lets you listen to millions of songs ad-free - the artists you love, the latest hits and discoveries just for you. Simply hit play to hear any song you like, at the highest sound quality.

Check out our current Premium offers at spotify.com/premium

Your new device has Spotify Connect built in.

Spotify Connect lets you control the music playing on your device, using the Spotify app on your mobile, tablet or PC.

Listening is seamless. You can take calls, play games, even switch your phone off - all without interrupting the music.

Learn more at spotify.com/connect

How to use Connect

You'll need Spotify Premium to use Connect, see details above.

1 Add your new device to the same wifi network as your phone, tablet or PC (see product user instructions for details).



If you're using the app on a phone - tap the song image in the bottom left of the screen. For tablet and PC move to step 4.



Tap the Connect icon 📢

Pick your device from the list. If you can't see it, just check it's connected to the same wifi network as your phone, tablet or PC.

All done! Happy listening.



MOUNTING TEMPLATE/GABARIT DE FIXATION

=== () () [] [] [] (=> (=>



ZR85910-1

EXAMPLE YSP-1600 SRT-1500

Innum

••••••• YH260A0 •••

HSEOHO

(OESSIN)

Owner's Manual / Mode D'emploi CD-ROM



Register Your New Yamaha Product

Thank you for purchasing a new product from Yamaha Electronics. We would like to continue providing you with high quality products and better service. Please take a few minutes to visit our website and complete the product registration process at **www.yamaha.com/YEC/registration/**

Yamaha is committed to doing it's part in protecting the environment and reducing the impact on our natural resources. As a result, this product is supplied with an electronic copy of the **manual on the enclosed disc** for use on your computer.

We appreciate your business and look forward to hearing from you soon.

Register online at www.yamaha.com/YEC/registration/

Product registration applies to USA customers only.

Failure to complete the registration form does not diminish your warranty rights in any way.



Yamaha Worldwide Representative Offices

For details of products, please contact your nearest Yamaha representative or the authorized distributor listed below. Pour plus de détails sur les produits, contactez votre représentant Yamaha le plus proche de chez vous ou le distributeur agréé indiqué ci-dessous.

NORTH AMERICA

CANADA

Yamaha Canada Music Ltd. 135 Milner Avenue, Tronto ON M1S 3R1, Canada

U.S.A.

Yamaha Corporation of America

6600 Orangethorpe Ave., Buena Park, Calif. 90620, U.S.A.

CENTRAL & SOUTH AMERICA

MEXICO Yamaha de México S.A. de C.V. Avenida Insurgentes número 1647, Col. San José Insurgentes, C.P. 03900, Deleg. Benito Juárez, México, D.F.

BRAZIL

Yamaha Musical do Brasil Ltda.

Rua Fidêncio Ramos, 302 - Cj 52 e 54 - Torre B - Vila Olímpia - CEP 04551-010 - São Paulo/SP BRAZIL

ARGENTINA

Yamaha Music Latin America, S.A. Sucursal de Argentina Olga Cossettini 1553, Piso 4 Norte Madero Este-C1107CEK Buenos Aires, Argentina

PANAMA AND OTHER LATIN AMERICAN COUNTRIES / CARIBBEAN COUNTRIES Yamaha Music Latin America, S.A.

Torre Banco General, Piso 7, Urbanización Marbella, Calle 47 y Aquilino de la Guardia, Ciudad de Panamá, Panamá

EUROPE

EUROPEAN COUNTRIES Yamaha Music Europe GmbH Siemensstrasse 22-34, 25462 Rellingen, Germany

RUSSIA

Yamaha Music (Russia) Room 37, bld. 7, Kievskaya street, Moscow, 121059, Russia

AFRICA

Yamaha Music Gulf FZE JAFZA-16, Office 512, P.O.Box 17328, Jabel Ali FZE, Dubai, U.A.E



Yamaha Corporation, Audio Products Sales and Marketing Division Nakazawa-cho 10-1, Naka-ku, Hamamatsu, Japan 430-8650 ヤマハ株式会社 〒 430-8650 静岡県浜松市中区中沢町 10-1



ZF73310-2

MIDDLE EAST

TURKEY / CYPRUS

Yamaha Music Europe GmbH Siemensstrasse 22-34, 25462 Rellingen, Germany

OTHER COUNTRIES

Yamaha Music Gulf FZE JAFZA-16, Office 512, P.O.Box 17328, Jabel Ali FZE, Dubai, U.A.E

ASIA

THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Yamaha Music & Electronics (China) Co.,Ltd. 2F, Yunhedasha, 1818 Xinzha-lu, Jingan-qu, Shanghai, China

INDIA

Yamaha Music India Pvt. Ltd.

Spazedge building, Ground Floor, Tower A, Sector 47, Gurgaon- Sohna Road, Gurgaon, Haryana, India

INDONESIA

PT. Yamaha Musik Indonesia (Distributor) PT. Nusantik

Gedung Yamaha Music Center, Jalan Jend. Gatot Subroto Kav. 4, Jakarta 12930, Indonesia

REPUBLIC OF KOREA

Yamaha Music Korea Ltd. 8F, 9F, Dongsung Bldg. 158-9 Samsung-Dong, Kangnam-Gu, Seoul, Korea

MALAYSIA

Yamaha Music (Malaysia) Sdn., Bhd.

Lot 8, Jalan Perbandaran, 47301 Kelana Jaya, Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia

SINGAPORE

Yamaha Music (Asia) PRIVATE LIMITED Blk 202 Hougang Street 21, #02-00, Singapore 530202, Singapore

TAIWAN

Yamaha Music and Electronics Taiwan Co., Ltd. 2F., No.1, Yuandong Rd. Banqiao Dist. New Taipei City 22063 Taiwan

THAILAND

Siam Music Yamaha Co., Ltd.

3, 4, 15, 16th Fl., Siam Motors Bldg., 891/1 Rama 1 Road, Wangmai, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330, Thailand

VIETNAM

Yamaha Music Vietnam Company, Limited 15th Floor, Nam A Bank Tower 201-203 Cach Mang Thang Tam St., Ward 4, Dist.3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

OTHER COUNTRIES

Yamaha Corporation, Business Planning Div. Area Business Development Department Nakazawa-cho 10-1, Naka-ku, Hamamatsu, Japan 430-8650

OCEANIA

AUSTRALIA / NEW ZEALAND Yamaha Music Australia Pty. Ltd. Level 1, 99 Queensbridge Street, Southbank,

Victoria 3006, Australia



Thank you for selecting a YAMAHA product. YAMAHA products are designed and manufactured to provide a high level of defect-free performance. Yamaha Corporation of America ("YAMAHA") is proud of the experience and craftsmanship that goes into each and every YAMAHA product. YAMAHA sells its products through a network of reputable, specially authorized dealers and is pleased to offer you, the Original Owner, the following Limited Warranty, which applies only to products that have been (1) directly purchased from YAMAHA's authorized dealers in the USA, including Puerto Rico (the "Warranted Area") and (2) used exclusively in the Warranted Area. YAMAHA suggests that you read the Limited Warranty thoroughly, and invites you to contact your authorized YAMAHA dealer or YAMAHA Customer Service if you have any questions.

THIS WARRANTY COVERS THE LISTED PRODUCTS AGAINST DEFECTS IN MATERIALS OR WORKMANSHIP FOR THE NUMBER OF YEARS IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Warranty Term Duration of Warranty from Date of Type of Product Purchase by or for the Original Owner A/V and Stereo Receivers, Processor and Integrated Amplifiers, Separate Amplifiers and Preamplifiers, Tuners, CD Players and Changers, HDD Players and Recorders, Network Players, Powered Loudspeakers, Media Controllers and Speaker Systems purchased 2 years individually, as a pair, or as part of an Integrated or Packaged System. Cassette Decks, Blu-ray Disc Players, DVD Players and Changers, Integrated Systems (Receiver or Amplifier combined or on same chassis with CD, DVD or Blu-ray Disc Player), Desktop Audio Systems (i.e. TSX and PDX Series), Multimedia Speakers, Headphones, 1 year Earphones and Accessories.

Coverage: YAMAHA will, at its option, repair or replace the product covered by this warranty if it becomes defective, malfunctions or otherwise fails to conform with this warranty under normal use and service during the term of this warranty, without charge for labor or materials. Repairs may be performed using new or refurbished parts that meet or exceed YAMAHA specifications for new parts. If YAMAHA elects to replace the product, the replacement may be a reconditioned unit. You will be responsible for any installation or removal charges and for any initial shipping charges if the product(s) must be shipped for warranty service. However, YAMAHA will pay the return shipping charges to any destination within the USA if the repairs are covered by the warranty. This warranty does not cover (a) damage, deterioration or malfunction resulting from accident, negligence, misuse, abuse, improper installation or operation or failure to follow instructions according to the Owner's Manual for this product; any shipment of the product (claims must be presented to the carrier); repair or attempted repair by anyone other than YAMAHA or an authorized YAMAHA Service Center; (b) any unit which has been altered or on which the serial number has been defaced, modified or removed; (c) normal wear, battery or battery replacement and any periodic damages attributable to power line surge or related electrical abnormalities, lightning damage or acts of God; (f) RFI/EMI (Interference/en/ose) caused by improper grounding or the improper use of either certified or uncertified equipment, if applicable; or (g) interference arising from the use of wireless communication devices (e.g. 2.4 gHz cordless telephones), or other radio frequency emitting products such as microwave ovens, whether such interference impairs the operation of the product or vice-versa. Consult the Owner's Manual for guidance on set-up procedures for minimizing the risks of interference. Any evidence of alteration, erasing or forgery of proof-of-purchase documents will

In Order to Obtain Warranty Service: Warranty service will only be provided for defective products within the Warranted Area. Contact your local authorized YAMAHA dealer who will advise you of the procedures to be followed. If this is not successful, contact YAMAHA at the address, telephone number or website shown below. YAMAHA may request that you send the defective product to a local authorized YAMAHA Servicer or authorize return of the defective product to YAMAHA for repair. For products requiring in-home service, contact your local authorized Yamaha dealer to arrange for service. If you are uncertain as to whether a dealer has been authorized by YAMAHA, please contact YAMAHA's Service Department at the number shown below, or check Yamaha's website at http://usa.yamaha.com. Product(s) shipped for service should be packed securely and must be accompanied by a detailed explanation of the problem(s) requiring service, together with the original or a machine reproduction of the bill of sale or other dated, proof-of-purchase document describing the product, as evidence of warranty coverage. Should any product submitted for warranty service be found ineligible therefore, an estimate of repair cost will be furnished and the repair will be accomplished only if requested by you and upon receipt of payment.

Limitation of Implied Warranties and Exclusion of Damages: ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE SHALL BE LIMITED IN DURATION TO THE APPLICABLE PERIOD OF TIME SET FORTH ABOVE. YAMAHA SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR FOR DAMAGES BASED UPON INCONVENIENCE, LOSS OF USE, DAMAGE TO ANY OTHER EQUIPMENT OR OTHER ITEMS AT THE SITE OF USE OR INTERRUPTION OF PERFORMANCES OR ANY CONSEQUENCES. YAMAHA'S LIABILITY FOR ANY DEFECTIVE PRODUCT IS LIMITED TO REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF THE PRODUCT, AT YAMAHA'S OPTION. SOME STATES DO NOT ALLOW LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY LASTS OR THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU. This Warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state. This is the only express warranty applicable to the product specified herein; Yamaha neither assumes nor authorizes anyone to assume for it any other express warranty.

If you have any questions about service received or if you need assistance in locating an authorized YAMAHA Servicer, please contact:



CUSTOMER SERVICE Yamaha Corporation of America 6600 Orangethorpe Avenue, Buena Park, California 90620-1373 Telephone: 800-292-2982 http://usa.yamaha.com

Do not return any product to the above address without a written Return Authorization issued by YAMAHA.

©2012 Yamaha Corporation of America